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LAREDO OIL, INC.
ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 5/31/2010 ON FORM 10-K

PART I
Item 1.

Business

Summary
Laredo Oil, Inc. is a Development Stage Enterprise engaged in the acquisition of mature oil fields and the recovery of stranded oil from those fields using
enhanced oil recovery methods.
From its inception through October 2009, the Company was primarily engaged in acquisition and exploration efforts for mineral properties. After a change in
control in October 2009, the Company shifted its focus to acquiring mature oil fields with the intention of recovering stranded oil using enhanced oil recovery
methods.
The Company plans to use an Enhanced Oil Recovery (“EOR”) method entitled Underground Gravity Drainage (“UGD”). This method uses conventional mining
processes to establish a chamber underneath an existing oil field from where closely spaced wellbores can be drilled up into the reservoir, using gravity to then
drain the targeted reservoir through the wellbores. This method is applicable to mature oil fields that have very specific geological characteristics. The
Company has done extensive research and has identified approximately 100 oil fields within the United States qualified for UGD recovery methods. The
Company intends to pursue and recover stranded oil from selected mature fields chosen from this group as funds become available.
We believe the costs of implementing the UGD method are radically lower than those presently experienced by commonly used EOR methods. We also estimate
that we can materially increase the field oil production rate from prior periods and recover amounts of oil equal to or greater than amounts previously recovered
from the mature fields selected. The Company intends to seek oil fields with a minimum of 25 million barrels of estimated recoverable oil.
When the Company acquires a targeted oil field, we will continue to operate the producing field and expect to generate revenue and profit from doing so. Once
development of the underground chamber and the UGD method is prepared for operation, the conventional wells will be capped after UGD production
has begun. The effect of such operations should result in minimal disruption of oil production from our field investments.
We have not earned any revenues to date. We do not anticipate earning revenues until such time as we acquire our first targeted oil field. We are presently
pursuing negotiations for targeted fields but can provide no assurance that we will be successful in our acquisition efforts.
Our shares are currently listed for trading on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board (“OTCBB”) under the symbol LRDC. As of the date of this report, there has
been light trading for our common stock and we cannot provide assurance that an active trading market for our securities will ever develop.
Competition
The oil industry is highly competitive in all phases. We encounter competition from other oil companies in all areas of operation, including the acquisition of
mature fields. Our competitors include numerous independent oil companies, individuals and drilling and income programs. Many of our competitors are large,
well established companies that have substantially larger operating staffs and greater capital resources than we do. Such companies may be able to pay more
for mature and declining oil properties and to define, evaluate, bid for and purchase a greater number of properties and prospects than our financial or human
resources permit. Our ability to acquire additional properties will depend upon our ability to consummate transactions in a highly competitive environment.
Operating Hazards and Uninsured Risks
Mining and drilling activities are subject to many risks, including the risk that no commercially productive reservoirs will be encountered. There can be no
assurance that the oil fields we acquire will be productive or that we will recover all or any portion of our investment. The cost and timing of mining, drilling,
completing and operating wells is often uncertain. Our drilling operations may be curtailed, delayed or canceled as a result of numerous factors, many of which
are beyond our control, including low oil and natural gas prices, title problems, weather conditions, delays by project participants, compliance with governmental
requirements, shortages or delays in the delivery of equipment and services and increases in the cost for such equipment and services. Our future oil recovery
activities may not be successful and, if unsuccessful, such failure may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows.
Our operations are subject to hazards and risks inherent in drilling for and producing and transporting oil, such as fires, natural disasters, explosions,
encountering formations with abnormal pressures, blowouts, craterings, pipeline ruptures and spills, any of which can result in the loss of hydrocarbons,
environmental pollution, personal injury claims and other damage to our properties and those of others. We maintain insurance against some but not all of the
risks described above. In particular, the insurance we maintain does not cover claims relating to failure of title to oil leases, loss of surface equipment at well
locations, business interruption, loss of revenue due to low commodity prices or loss of revenues due to well failure. Furthermore, in certain circumstances in
which insurance is available, we may not purchase it. The occurrence of an event that is not covered, or not fully covered by insurance could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows in the period such event may occur.
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Item 1.

Business - continued

Governmental Regulation
Our oil and natural gas exploration, production, transportation and marketing activities are subject to extensive laws, rules and regulations promulgated by federal
and state legislatures and agencies, including but not limited to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”), the Environmental Protection Agency
(“EPA”), the Bureau of Land Management (“BLM”), the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (“TCEQ”), the Texas Railroad Commission (“TRRC”), the
Oklahoma Corporation Commission (“OCC”), the Montana Board of Oil and Gas Conservation (“MBOGC”) and similar type commissions within these states and
of the other states in which we do business. Failure to comply with such laws, rules and regulations can result in substantial penalties, including the delay or
stopping of our operations. The legislative and regulatory burden on the oil industry increases our cost of doing business and affects our profitability.
Although we do not own or operate any pipelines or facilities that are directly regulated by FERC, its regulation of third party pipelines and facilities could
indirectly affect our ability to transport or market our production. We believe we are in substantial compliance with all applicable laws and regulations; however,
we are unable to predict the future cost or impact of complying with such laws and regulations because they are frequently amended, interpreted and
reinterpreted.
The states of Texas, Oklahoma, Arkansas, Montana and most other states, as well as the federal government when operating on federal or Indian lands, require
permits for drilling operations, drilling bonds and reports concerning operations and impose other requirements relating to the exploration and production of oil.
These governmental authorities also have statutes or regulations addressing conservation matters, including provisions for the unitization or pooling of oil and
natural gas properties, the establishment of maximum rates of production from wells and the regulation of spacing, plugging and abandonment of such wells.
Environmental Matters
Our operations and properties are, like the oil industry in general, subject to extensive and changing federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to both
environmental protection, including the generation, storage, handling, emission, transportation and discharge of materials into the environment, and safety and
health. The recent trend in environmental legislation and regulation is generally toward stricter standards, and this trend is likely to continue. These laws and
regulations may require a permit or other authorization before construction or drilling commences and for certain other activities; limit or prohibit access, seismic
acquisition, construction, drilling and other activities on certain lands lying within wilderness and other protected areas; impose substantial liabilities for pollution
resulting from our operations; and require the reclamation of certain lands.
The permits required for many of our operations are subject to revocation, modification and renewal by issuing authorities.
Governmental authorities have the power to enforce compliance with their regulations, and violations are subject to fines, injunctions, or both. In the opinion of
management, we are in substantial compliance with current applicable environmental laws and regulations, and we have no material commitments for capital
expenditures to comply with existing environmental requirements. Nevertheless, changes in existing environmental laws and regulations or in interpretations
thereof could have a significant impact on us, as well as the oil industry in general. The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability
Act (“CERCLA”) and comparable state statutes impose strict and arguably joint and several liabilities on owners and operators of certain sites and on persons
who disposed of or arranged for the disposal of "hazardous substances" found at such sites. It is not uncommon for the neighboring landowners and other third
parties to file claims for personal injury and property damage allegedly caused by the hazardous substances released into the environment. The Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA”) and comparable state statutes govern the disposal of "solid waste" and "hazardous waste" and authorize imposition of
substantial fines and penalties for noncompliance. Although CERCLA currently excludes petroleum from its definition of "hazardous substance," state laws
affecting our operations impose clean-up liability relating to petroleum and petroleum related products. In addition, although RCRA classifies certain oil field
wastes as "non-hazardous," such exploration and production wastes could be reclassified as hazardous wastes, thereby making such wastes subject to more
stringent handling and disposal requirements.
Federal regulations require certain owners or operators of facilities that store or otherwise handle oil, such as us, to prepare and implement spill prevention,
control countermeasure and response plans relating to the possible discharge of oil into surface waters. The Oil Pollution Act of 1990 (“OPA”) contains numerous
requirements relating to the prevention of and response to oil spills into waters of the United States. For onshore and offshore facilities that may affect waters of
the United States, the OPA requires an operator to demonstrate financial responsibility. Regulations are currently being developed under federal and state laws
concerning oil pollution prevention and other matters that may impose additional regulatory burdens on us. In addition, the Clean Water Act and analogous state
laws require permits to be obtained to authorize discharge into surface waters or to construct facilities in wetland areas. The Clean Air Act of 1970 and its
subsequent amendments in 1990 and 1997 also impose permit requirements and necessitate certain restrictions on point source emissions of volatile organic
carbons (nitrogen oxides and sulfur dioxide) and particulates with respect to certain of our operations. We are required to maintain such permits or meet general
permit requirements. The EPA and designated state agencies have in place regulations concerning discharges of storm water runoff and stationary sources of
air emissions. These programs require covered facilities to obtain individual permits, participate in a group or seek coverage under an EPA general permit. Most
agencies recognize the unique qualities of oil and natural gas exploration and production operations. A number of agencies including but not limited to the EPA,
the BLM, the TCEQ, the OCC, the MBOGC and similar commissions within these states and of other states in which we do business have adopted regulatory
guidance in consideration of the operational limitations on these types of facilities and their potential to emit pollutants. We believe that we will be able to obtain,
or be included under, such permits, where necessary, and to make minor modifications to existing facilities and operations that would not have a material effect
on us.
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Item 1.

Business - continued

Climate Change
Climate change has become the subject of an important public policy debate. Climate change remains a complex issue, with some scientific research suggesting
that an increase in greenhouse gas emissions ("GHGs") may pose a risk to society and the environment. The oil and natural gas exploration and production
industry is a source of certain GHGs, namely carbon dioxide and methane, and future restrictions on the combustion of fossil fuels or the venting of natural gas
could have a significant impact on our future operations.
Impact of Legislation and Regulation . The commercial risk associated with the exploration and production of fossil fuels lies in the uncertainty of governmentimposed climate change legislation, including cap and trade schemes, and regulations that may affect us, our suppliers, and our customers. The cost of meeting
these requirements may have an adverse impact on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows, and could reduce the demand for our products.
Climate change legislation and regulations have been adopted by many states in the US; however, legislation and regulations have not been enacted at the
federal level in the US or all states, although Congress and several states are considering adopting climate change legislation. The current state of development
of many state and federal climate change regulatory initiatives in areas where we operate makes it difficult to predict with certainty the future impact on us,
including accurately estimating the related compliance costs that we may incur.
Indirect Consequences of Regulation or Business Trends. We believe there are risks arising from the global response to climate change.
Physical Impacts of Climate Change on our Costs and Operations. There has been public discussion that climate change may be associated with extreme
weather conditions such as more intense hurricanes, thunderstorms, tornados and snow or ice storms, as well as rising sea levels. Extreme weather conditions
increase our costs, and damage resulting from extreme weather may not be fully insured. However, the extent to which climate change may lead to increased
storm or weather hazards affecting our operations is difficult to identify at this time.
Formation
We were incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware on March 31, 2008 under the name of “Laredo Mining, Inc.” with authorized common stock of
90,000,000 shares at $0.0001 par value and authorized preferred stock of 10,000,000 shares at $0.0001 par value. On October 21, 2009 the name was changed
to “Laredo Oil, Inc.” Effective October 21, 2009, all shares of the Company’s common stock issued and outstanding were combined and reclassified on a 1-to6.25 basis. In connection with this change, the Certificate of Incorporation was amended to retain the par value at $0.0001 per share.
Facilities
Our principal executive office is located in Austin, Texas, at 2203 Townes Lane, Austin, Texas 78703.
Employees
As of May 31, 2010, we had 2 full-time employees.
Website Access
We make available, free of charge through our website, www.laredo-oil.com, our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on
form 8-K, and all amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Information on our website is not a part of this report.

Item 2.

Properties

We currently do not own any physical property or own any real property. We utilize space provided to us on a rent free basis from our officers and director,
Bradley E. Sparks and Mark See. Management believes the current premises are sufficient for its needs at this time but expect to move to a rented office located
in Austin, Texas during calendar year 2010 as funding becomes available.
The company has intangible property which is not recorded on the balance sheet in the form of a business plan and strategy to recover stranded oil from mature
and declining oil fields using the UGD business model. The value of the management team participating in the company is also an intangible asset not reflected
on the balance sheet.

Item 3.

Legal Proceedings

We are not currently involved in any legal proceedings and we are not aware of any pending or potential legal actions.
As of May 31, 2010, there are no known environmental or other regulatory matters related to our operations that are reasonably expected to result in a material
liability to us. Compliance with environmental laws and regulations has not had, and is not expected to have, a material adverse effect on our capital
expenditures.

6

PART II
Item 5.

Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The Company’s common stock currently is quoted on the OTCBB which is not recognized as a stock exchange for SEC reporting purposes. Since the Company
began trading November 5, 2009 on the OTCBB, there has been a very limited trading market for the Company's common stock.

High Bid
Low Bid

Laredo Oil, Inc. High/Low Market Bid Prices ($)
Fiscal Q2: Sep 2009—Nov 2009
Fiscal Q3: Dec 2009—Feb 2010
1.55
1.95
0.00
0.25

Fiscal Q4: Mar 2010—May 2010
1.81
0.00

Over-the-counter market quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down or commission and may not necessarily represent actual
transactions.
Since its inception, the Company has not paid any dividends on its common stock, and the Company does not anticipate that it will pay dividends in the
foreseeable future. We have no outstanding options and have no securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans, although the Company
plans to put an equity compensation plan in place during the third or fourth calendar quarter of 2010.
The Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") has adopted rules that regulate broker-dealer practices in connection with transactions in penny
stocks. Penny stocks are generally equity securities with a price of less than $5.00, other than securities registered on certain national securities exchanges or
quoted on the NASDAQ system, provided that current price and volume information with respect to transactions in such securities is provided by the exchange
or quotation system. The penny stock rules require a broker-dealer, prior to a transaction in a penny stock, to deliver a standardized risk disclosure document
prepared by the SEC, that: (a) contains a description of the nature and level of risk in the market for penny stocks in both public offerings and secondary trading;
b) contains a description of the broker’s or dealer’s duties to the customer and of the rights and remedies available to the customer with respect to a violation to
such duties or other requirements of Securities’ laws; (c) contains a brief, clear, narrative description of a dealer market, including bid and ask prices for penny
stocks and the significance of the spread between the bid and ask price; (d) contains a toll-free telephone number for inquiries on disciplinary actions; (e) defines
significant terms in the disclosure document or in the conduct of trading in penny stocks; and (f) contains such other information and is in such form, including
language, type, size and format, as the SEC shall require by rule or regulation. The broker-dealer also must provide, prior to effecting any transaction in a penny
stock, the customer with: (a) bid and offer quotations for the penny stock; (b) the compensation of the broker-dealer and its salesperson in the transaction; (c)
the number of shares to which such bid and ask prices apply, or other comparable information relating to the depth and liquidity of the market for such stock; and
(d) monthly account statements showing the market value of each penny stock held in the customer’s account. In addition, the penny stock rules require that
prior to a transaction in a penny stock not otherwise exempt from those rules, the broker-dealer must make a special written determination that the penny stock is
a suitable investment for the purchaser and receive the purchaser’s written acknowledgment of the receipt of a risk disclosure statement, a written agreement to
transactions involving penny stocks, and a signed and dated copy of a suitably written statement.
These disclosure requirements may have the effect of reducing the trading activity in the secondary market for our stock if it becomes subject to these penny
stock rules. Therefore, if our common stock becomes subject to the penny stock rules, stockholders may have difficulty selling those securities.
On October 16, 2009, the sole director of the Company approved an amendment to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation (the “Certificate of Amendment”) in
order to change the name of the Company from “Laredo Mining, Inc.” to “Laredo Oil, Inc.” and to affect a 1:6.25 forward split of the Company’s common
stock. On October 16, 2009, stockholders representing the requisite number of votes necessary approved the adoption of the Certificate of Amendment. On
October 21, 2009, the Company filed the Certificate of Amendment with the Secretary of the State of Delaware.
As at September 14, 2010 the Company had 51,000,013 shares of common stock issued and outstanding estimated to be held by more than 300 record
holders which include holders who own units through their brokers "in street name". Additionally, the Company had outstanding warrants to purchase 707,500
shares of stock at an exercised price equal to the lower of (a) the lowest price paid per share for a future equity sale in excess of 7.5 million dollars and (b) $2.00
per share. The Company also had 975,000 warrants outstanding that were issued in conjunction with a Stock Purchase Agreement entered into on July 26,
2010 (see Note 10 of notes to financial statements).

Item 7.

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Laredo Oil, Inc. is a Development Stage Enterprise engaged in the acquisition of mature oil fields and the recovery of stranded oil from those fields using
enhanced oil recovery methods.
From its inception through October 2009, the Company was primarily engaged in acquisition and exploration efforts for mineral properties. In October 2009, the
Company shifted its focus to acquiring mature oil fields with the intention of recovering stranded oil using enhanced oil recovery methods.
The Company plans to use an Enhanced Oil Recovery (“EOR”) method entitled Underground Gravity Drainage ("UGD"). This method uses conventional mining
processes to establish a chamber underneath an existing oil field from where closely spaced wellbores can be drilled up into the reservoir, using gravity to then
drain the targeted reservoir through the wellbores. This method is applicable to mature oil fields that have very specific geological characteristics. The
Company has done extensive research and has identified approximately 100 oil fields within the United States qualified for UGD recovery methods. The
Company intends to pursue and recover stranded oil from selected mature fields chosen from this group as funds become available.
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Item 7.

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - continued

We believe the costs of implementing the UGD method are radically lower than those presently experienced by commonly used EOR methods. We also estimate
that we can materially increase the field oil production rate from prior periods and recover amounts of oil equal to or greater than amounts previously recovered
from the mature fields selected. The Company intends to seek oil fields with a minimum of 25 million barrels of estimated recoverable oil.
When the Company acquires a targeted oil field, we will continue to operate the producing field and expect to generate revenue and profit from doing so. Once
development of the underground chamber and the UGD method is prepared for operation, the conventional wells will be capped and UGD production
begun. The effect of such operations should result in minimal disruption of oil production from our field investments.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
We received our initial funding of $9,000 through the sale of common stock to Ms. Nancy Farrell who purchased 18,750,000 shares of common stock on March
31, 2008. On June 4, 2009 we issued a total of 12,500,000 shares of common stock to various individuals for a cash total of $30,000 to complete our S-1
offering.
We incurred operating expenses of $899,800 and $21,330 for the year ended May 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. These expenses consisted of general
operating expenses incurred in connection with the day to day operation of our business, the preparation and filing of our registration statement and required
reports, and costs associated with fund raising activities. The increase in expenses for the twelve months ended May 31, 2010 as compared to the same period
in 2009 is primarily attributable to accrued payroll expenses for the newly appointed CEO and CFO of the Company, as well as fund raising costs.
The Company has no revenue to date from its operations and its ability to implement its plans for the future will depend on the future availability of financing. We
estimate that we will require up to $50 million to enable the Company to acquire two targeted mature oil fields and implement its UGD enhanced oil recovery
technique in the smaller of the two fields. The Company intends to raise funds through private placements of the Company’s stock and through borrowing. The
financing activities of the Company are current and ongoing, and it will implement its strategy as the timing and amount of financing allow. However, there can
be no assurance that we will be successful in obtaining additional capital for such activities from the sale of its capital stock, or in otherwise raising substantial
capital.
Our reported cash at May 31, 2010 was $157,005. The Company received a $25,000 bridge loan from a shareholder on November 6, 2009 and another
$50,000 bridge loan from the same shareholder on December 30, 2009. Both loans are due and payable upon receiving permanent financing proceeds in
excess of $2.5 million. As of May 31, 2010, we had raised an additional $275,000 from the sale of Subordinated Convertible Promissory Notes and Warrants. A
portion of salaries owed were deferred through the period ended May 31, 2010.
Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not currently have any off balance sheet arrangements or other such unrecorded obligations, and we have not guaranteed the debt of any other party.

Item 8.

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our Consolidated Financial Statements required by this item are included on the pages immediately following the Index to Financial Statements appearing on
page F-1.

Item 9.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A.

Controls and Procedures

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
As of May 31, 2010, our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. There are inherent limitations to the
effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and procedures, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of the controls and
procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls and procedures can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their control objectives. Based
upon and as of the date of the evaluation, our principal executive officer and our principal financial officer concluded that the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective at a reasonable assurance level in that they ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the
reports that we file or submit under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 is (1) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the SEC's rules and forms, and (2) accumulated and communicated to our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
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Item 9A.

Controls and Procedures - continued

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act
Rule 13a-15(f). Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the
framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission ("COSO"). Based
on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the COSO, our management concluded that our internal control
over financial reporting was not effective as of May 31, 2010.
The conclusion that the internal controls are not effective is based on the lack of segregation of duties required under the framework issued by COSO. There are
only two employees currently in the organization. As the company grows, we will have the ability to remedy this situation and put more stringent control
measures in place.
This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial
reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by the Company’s registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities
and Exchange Commission that permit the Company to provide only management’s report in this annual report.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended May 31, 2010 that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B.

Other Information

None.

PART III
Item 10.

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The following table sets forth as of May 31, 2010, the name, age, and position of each executive officer and director and the term of office of each director of the
Company.
Name
Mark See
Bradley E. Sparks

Age
49
63

Position Held
Chief Executive Officer, Secretary and sole director
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Term as Director Since
October 16, 2009
NA

Each director of the Company serves for a term of one year and until his successor is elected at the Company's annual shareholders' meeting and is qualified,
subject to removal by the Company's shareholders. Each officer serves, at the pleasure of the Board of Directors, for a term of one year and until his successor is
elected at the Annual General Meeting of the Board of Directors.
Set forth below is certain biographical information regarding each of the Company's executive officers and directors.
MARK SEE has been the Chief Executive Officer, Secretary, and sole director of the Company since October 16, 2009. He has over 23 years experience in
tunneling, natural resources and the petroleum industries. He was the founder and initial CEO of Rock Well Petroleum, a private Oil & Gas Company from
January 2005 until December 2008 and worked from then until October of 2009 forming Laredo Oil. He was employed with Albian Sands as the Manager for the
Alberta Oil Sands Projects at Fort McMurray, Alberta, Canada, a joint venture between Shell Canada and Chevron. Mr. See was also President of Oil Recovery
Enhancement LLC in Bozeman, Montana, a private oil company. He was selected as one of the top 25 Engineers in North America by the Engineering News
Record for his innovations in the petroleum industry. He is a member of the Petroleum Society of the Canadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy & Petroleum, the
Society of Mining Engineers and the Society of Petroleum Engineers.
BRADLEY E. SPARKS currently serves as the Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer. Before joining Laredo Oil, he was the Chief Executive Officer, President
and a Director of Visualant, Inc. Prior to joining Visualant, he was the Chief Financial Officer of WatchGuard Technologies, Inc. from 2005-2006. Before joining
WatchGuard, he was the founder and managing director of Sunburst Growth Ventures, LLC, a private investment firm specializing in emerging-growth
companies. Previously, he founded Pointer Communications and served as Chief Financial Officer for several telecommunications and internet companies,
including eSpire Communications, Inc., Digex, Inc., Omnipoint Corporation, and WAM!NET. He also served as Vice President and Treasurer of MCI
Communications from 1988-1993 and as Vice President and Controller from 1993-1995. Before his tenure at MCI, Mr. Sparks held various financial
management positions at Ryder System, Inc. Mr. Sparks currently serves on the Board of Directors of iCIMS, Visualant, and Comrise China. Mr. Sparks
graduated from the United States Military Academy at West Point in 1969 and is a former Army Captain in the Signal Corps. He has an MS in Management from
the Sloan School of Management at MIT and is a licensed CPA in Florida.
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Item 10.

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance - continued

To the knowledge of management, during the past ten years, no present or former director, executive officer or person nominated to become a director or an
executive officer of the Company:
(1)
(2)
(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

filed a petition under the federal bankruptcy laws or any state insolvency law, nor had a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer appointed by the court for
the business or property of such person, or any partnership in which he was a general partner at or within two years before the time of such filings;
was convicted in a criminal proceeding or named subject of a pending criminal proceeding (excluding traffic violations and other minor offenses);
was the subject of any order, judgment or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction, permanently
or temporarily enjoining him from or otherwise limiting, the following activities:
(i)
acting as a futures commission merchant, introducing broker, commodity trading advisor, commodity pool operator, floor broker, leverage
transaction merchant, any other person regulated by the Commodity Futures Trading Commission, or an associated person of any of the
foregoing, or as an investment adviser, underwriter, broker or dealer in securities, or as an affiliated person, director or employee of any
investment company, bank, savings and loan association or insurance company, or engaging in or continuing any conduct or practice in
connection with such activity;
(ii)
engaging in any type of business practice; or
(iii)
engaging in any activities in connection with the purchase or sale of any security or commodity or in connection with any violation of federal or
state securities laws or federal commodities laws;
was the subject of any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended, or vacated, of any federal or state authority barring,
suspending or otherwise limiting for more than 60 days the right of such person to engage in any activity described above under this Item, or to be
associated with persons engaged in any such activities;
was found by a court of competent jurisdiction in a civil action or by the Securities and Exchange Commission to have violated any federal or state
securities law, and the judgment in such civil action or finding by the Securities and Exchange Commission has not been subsequently reversed,
suspended, or vacated;
was found by a court of competent jurisdiction in a civil action or by the Commodity Futures Trading Commission to have violated any federal
commodities law, and the judgment in such civil action or finding by the Commodity Futures Trading Commission has not been subsequently reversed,
suspended or vacated.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

During the previous fiscal year ended May 31, 2010, the Company had no class of equity securities registered pursuant to Section 12 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Accordingly, no reports were required to be filed pursuant to Section 16(a) with respect to the Company's
officers, directors and beneficial holders of more than ten percent of any class of equity securities.
Code of Ethics
The Company’s Code of Ethics is attached as Exhibit 14.1 to this Form 10-K and can be found on the Company’s web site at www.Laredo-Oil.com.
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ITEM 11.

Executive Compensation

Compensation Summary for Executive Officers
The following table sets forth compensation paid or accrued by the Company for the last two years ended May 31, 2009 and 2010 with regard to individuals who
served as the Principal Executive Officer and for executive officers receiving compensation in excess of $100,000 during these fiscal periods.

(a)

(b)

Name and Principal Position
Nancy Farrell(1)
Former President, Secretary, Treasurer
and sole director

Year
2009

Mark See
Chief Executive Officer, Secretary and
sole director

2010

Bradley E. Sparks
Chief Financial Officer & Treasurer

2010

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

Summary Compensation Table
(c)
(e)
Stock
Salary (3)
Awards(2)
($)
($)
0

(i)
All other
Compensation(4)
($)

(j)
Total
($)

0

0

0

168,750

154,131

4,769

327,650

128,333

33,898

3,943

166,174

Ms. Farrell resigned as President, Secretary, Treasurer, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Principal Accounting Officer and sole director on
October 16, 2009.
Presentation includes amounts accrued for financial statement purposes under FAS 123R.
The salary amounts shown were accrued in the financial reports. As of May 31, 2010, Mr. See had received $101,250 and Mr. Sparks received $75,833
of the accrued amounts owed them.
The amount shown represents amounts spent for providing health benefits.

CEO Compensation and Termination of Employment Provision
Pursuant to a letter agreement between us and Mr. See, we agreed to pay Mr. See an annual base salary of $240,000, and after the Company is funded with a
minimum of $7.5 million of capital, a base salary of $450,000 per year. The base salary has an automatic cost of living increase of 10% per year. He also is
entitled to a monthly automobile allowance of $1,000, a monthly professional allowance of $1,000, and a monthly communication allowance of $500. We also
granted to Mr. See 12,844,269 shares of our common stock. If Mr. See is terminated by us without “Cause” (as such term is defined in the letter agreement),
we will pay severance to Mr. See equal to 100% of his then-current annualized base salary, and any bonuses earned, paid out on a pro rata basis over our
regular payroll schedule over the three year period following the effective date of such termination. In addition, Mr. See will continue to receive all applicable
benefits under our standard benefits plans currently available to other senior executives, for a period not to exceed 24 months following the termination of
employment. Moreover, pursuant to a change in control severance agreement between us and Mr. See, if Mr. See is terminated by us within 12 months
following a change in control of the Company without Cause (as such term is defined in the change in control agreement) or if Mr. See terminates his
employment with us for “Good Reason” (as such term is defined in the change in control agreement), he will be entitled to receipt of 100% of bonuses earned
and his annual base salary paid out on a pro rata basis over our regular payroll schedule until October 16, 2012. In addition, Mr. See will continue to receive all
applicable benefits under our standard benefits plans currently available to other senior executives, for a period not to exceed 24 months following the
termination of employment.
Pursuant to a letter agreement between us and Mr. Sparks, we agreed to pay Mr. Sparks an annual base salary of $180,000, and after the Company is funded
with a minimum of $7.5 million of capital, a base salary of $350,000 per year. The base salary has an automatic cost of living increase of 10% per year. He also
is entitled to a monthly automobile allowance of $1,000, a monthly professional allowance of $1,000, and a monthly communication allowance of $500. We also
granted to Mr. Sparks 2,824,857 shares of our common stock. If Mr. Sparks is terminated by us without “Cause” (as such term is defined in the letter
agreement), we will pay severance to Mr. Sparks equal to 100% of his then-current annualized base salary, and any bonuses earned, paid out on a pro rata
basis over our regular payroll schedule over the three year period following the effective date of such termination. In addition, Mr. Sparks will continue to receive
all applicable benefits under our standard benefits plans currently available to other senior executives, for a period not to exceed 24 months following the
termination of employment. Moreover, pursuant to a change in control severance agreement between us and Mr. Sparks, if Mr. Sparks is terminated by us within
12 months following a change in control of the Company without Cause (as such term is defined in the change in control agreement) or if Mr. Sparks terminates
his employment with us for “Good Reason” (as such term is defined in the change in control agreement), he will be entitled to receipt of 100% of bonuses
earned and his annual base salary paid out on a pro rata basis over our regular payroll schedule until October 20, 2012. In addition, Mr. Sparks will continue to
receive all applicable benefits under our standard benefits plans currently available to other senior executives, for a period not to exceed 24 months following
the termination of employment.
Outstanding equity awards as of last completed fiscal year
None
As of the filing of this document, there is not yet any pension or equity incentive plan in place for executives or employees. As the Company matures, it is
expected that such plans will be adopted in order to be competitive for the best talent in the industry.
Director Compensation
None
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ITEM 12.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth as of the date of the filing of this Form 10-K, the name and address and the number of shares of the Company's common stock,
with a par value of $0.0001 per share, held of record or beneficially by each person who held of record, or was known by the Company to own beneficially, more
than 5% of the issued and outstanding shares of the Company's common stock, and the name and shareholdings of each director and of all officers and directors
as a group.
Name and Address
of Beneficial
Owner

Nature of
Ownership(1)

Amount
of Beneficial
Ownership

Percent
of Class

Bedford Holdings, LLC (2)
44 Polo Drive
Big Horn, WY 82833

Direct

12,844,269

25.2%

Darlington, LLC (3)
P.O. Box 723
Big Horn, WY 82833

Direct

5,423,138

10.6%

Mark See
P.O. Box 723
Big Horn, WY 82833

Direct

12,844,269

25.2%

Ao D Morris & Associates, LLC
665 Third Street, Suite 508
San Francisco, CA 94107

Direct

3,399,000

6.7%

Bradley E. Sparks
2203 Townes Lane
Austin, TX 78703

Direct

2,824,857

5.5%

Kenneth Lipson
41 Sutter Street, Suite 1786
San Francisco, CA 94104

Direct

4,608,373

9.0%

All Directors and Officers as a Group (2
persons)

Direct

15,669,126

30.7%

(1)

All shares owned directly are owned beneficially and of record, and such shareholder has sole voting, investment and dispositive power, unless otherwise
noted.

(2)

These shares are owned and controlled by Mr. See’s sister. Mr. See disclaims any beneficial ownership or control of such shares.

(3)

These shares are owned and controlled by Mr. See’s spouse. Mr. See disclaims any beneficial ownership or control of such shares.

ITEM 13.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Transactions with Management and Others
On October 16, 2009, Nancy L. Farrell, formerly the Company’s President, Secretary, Treasurer, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Principal
Accounting Officer and sole director, entered into a purchase agreement with Mark See, pursuant to which Mr. See acquired 18,750,000 shares of common
stock of the Company for aggregate consideration of $225,000. Upon the closing of the purchase, Mr. See acquired 60% of the Company’s issued and
outstanding common stock and attained voting control of the Company. Ms. Farrell resigned from all of her positions with the Company. Immediately prior to
her resignation on October 16, 2009, she appointed Mark See to serve as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Secretary and sole director. On October 19,
2009, Mr. See entered into a cancellation agreement with the Company, pursuant to which he agreed to return an aggregate of 18,750,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock to the Company for cancellation. Such shares were returned to the authorized capital of the Company.
In October 2009, the sole director, Ms. Farrell, forgave debt to the Company in the amount of $12,400 as part of the change of control transaction. This amount
has been recorded as an addition to paid in capital.
In January 2010, David Morris, who owns over 5% of the Company’s common stock, was reimbursed $3,279.69 for expenses incurred for activities benefitting
the Company (See Note 6 of the Notes to Financial Statement).
In both November and December 2009, the Company issued a note payable to Mr. Kenneth Lipson who is a shareholder owning over 5% of the Company’s
common stock (See Note 6 of the Notes to Financial Statements).
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ITEM 14.
(1)

Principal Accounting Fees and Services
Audit Fees

The aggregate fees billed by the independent accountants for each of the last two fiscal years for professional services for the audit of the Company’s annual
financial statements and the review of financial statements included in the Company’s Form 10-Q and services that are normally provided by the accountants in
connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements for those fiscal years were $6,925 for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2009 and $7,175 for the
fiscal year ended May 31, 2010.
(2)

Audit-Related Fees

The aggregate fees billed in each of the last two fiscal years for assurance and related services by the principal accountants that are reasonably related to the
performance of the audit or review of the Company’s financial statements and are not reported under paragraph (1) above was $0.
(3)

Tax Fees

The aggregate fees billed in each of the last two fiscal years for professional services rendered by the principal accountants for tax compliance, tax advice, and
tax planning was $0.
(4)

All Other Fees

During the last two fiscal years there were no other fees charged by the principal accountants other than those disclosed in (1) and (2) above.
(5)

Audit Committee’s Pre-approval Policies and Procedures

At the present time, there are not sufficient directors, officers and employees involved with the Company to make any pre-approval policies meaningful. Once
the Company has elected more directors and appointed directors and non-directors to the Audit Committee it will have meetings and function in a meaningful
manner.
(6)

Audit hours incurred

The principal accountants spent approximately 50 percent of the total hours expended on auditing the Company’s financial statements for the most recent fiscal
year. The hours were about equal to the hours spent by the Company’s internal accountant.

PART IV
ITEM 15.

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a) (1) Financial Statements. See Index to Financial Statements on page F-1.

(a) (2) Financial Statement Schedules
The following financial statement schedules are included as part of this report:
None.
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ITEM 15.

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules - continued

(a) (3) Exhibits
The exhibits required to be filed herewith by Item 601 of Regulation S-K, as described in the following index of exhibits, are attached hereto unless otherwise
indicated as being incorporated herein by reference, as follows:
3.1

Certificate of Incorporation, included as Exhibit 3.1 in our Form S-1 filed August 25, 2008, File No. 333-153168 and incorporated herein by reference.

3.2

Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation, included as Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 8-K filed October 22, 2009 and incorporated herein by
reference.

3.3

Bylaws, included as Exhibit 3.2 in our S-1 filed August 25, 2008, File No. 333-153168 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.1

Letter Agreement dated October 16, 2009 between the Company and Mark See, CEO, regarding CEO compensation package.

10.2

Letter Agreement dated October 20, 2009 between the Company and Bradley E. Sparks regarding CFO compensation package.

10.3

Purchase Agreement, included as Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 8-K filed June 9, 2010 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.4

Form of Warrant to Purchase Stock of Laredo Oil, Inc., included as Exhibit 10.2 to our Form 8-K filed June 9, 2010 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.5

Form of Subordinated Convertible Promissory Note, included as Exhibit 10.3 to our Form 8-K filed June 9, 2010 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.6

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 26, 2010, among the Company and each Purchaser identified on the signature pages thereto, included
as Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 8-K filed July 28, 2010 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.7

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant, included as Exhibit 10.2 to our Form 8-K filed July 28, 2010 and incorporated herein by reference.

14.1

Code of Ethics for Employees and Directors.

31.1

Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).

31.2

Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).

32.1

Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2

Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

SIGNATURES
In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto
duly authorized.
LAREDO OIL, INC.
(the "Registrant")
Date: September 14, 2010

By: /s/ Mark See
Mark See
Chief Executive Officer and sole Director

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on
the dates indicated.

Date: September 14, 2010

By: /s/ Bradley E. Sparks
Bradley E. Sparks
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
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F-1

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors
Laredo Oil, Inc.
Austin, Texas

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Laredo Oil Inc. (A Development Stage Enterprise) as of May 31, 2010 and 2009 and the related
statements of operations, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended and the period March 31, 2008 (inception) through May 31, 2010.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is
not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Laredo Oil, Inc. (A Development
Stage Enterprise) as of May 31, 2010 and 2009 and the results of its operations and cash flows for years then ended and the period March 31, 2008
(inception) through May 31, 2010, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the
financial statements, the Company has limited operations and has no established source of revenue. This raises substantial doubt about its ability to continue as
a going concern. Management's plan in regard to these matters is also described in Note 6. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might
result from the outcome of this uncertainty.
/s/ Kyle L. Tingle, CPA, LLC
---------------------------------Kyle L. Tingle, CPA, LLC

August 27, 2010
Las Vegas, Nevada
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Laredo Oil, Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Enterprise)
Balance Sheets

May 31,
2010
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash
Restricted cash
Prepaid expenses
Debt financing fees, net of accumulated amortization of $6,085 and $0
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Note payable
Convertible debt, net of unamortized debt discount of $215,552 and $0

$

157,005
33,350
62,665

$

114
23,625
-

$

253,020

$

23,739

$

13,626
252,674
75,000
128,198

80
12,400

469,498

12,480

-

23,625

-

-

Total Liabilities
Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity
Common stock subscribed
Preferred stock: $0.0001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued or
outstanding
Common stock: $0.0001 par value; 90,000,000 shares authorized; 50,000,013 and 18,750,000
issued and outstanding
Additional paid in capital
Accumulated deficit during exploration stage
Total stockholders’ (deficit) equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

F-3

May 31,
2009

5,000
720,842
(942,320)

1,875
7,125
(21,366)

(216,478)

11,259

253,020

$

23,739

Laredo Oil, Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Enterprise)
Statements of Operations

Year Ended
May 31, 2010
Revenue

$

Year Ended
May 31, 2009
-

$

Date of Inception
(March 31, 2008)
Through
May 31, 2010

Year Ended
May 31, 2008
-

$

-

$

-

Cost of revenue

-

-

-

-

Gross profit

-

-

-

-

779,967
110,333
9,500

14,330
7,000

36
-

794,333
110,333
16,500

(899,800)

(21,330)

(36)

(921,166)

General, selling and administrative expenses
Consulting and professional services
Mineral expenditures
Operating loss
Non-operating income
Interest expense

(21,154)

-

-

Net loss

$

(920,954)

$

(21,330)

$

(36)

Net loss per share, basic and diluted

$

(0.02)

$

(0.00)

$

(0.00)

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

42,640,035

18,750,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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18,750,000

(21,154)
$

(942,320)

Laredo Oil, Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Enterprise)
Statement of Stockholders' (Deficit) Equity
From Date if Inception (March 31, 2008) through May 31, 2010

Common Stock
Shares
Amount
Common shares issued to
founders

-

-

-

-

(36)

18,750,000

1,875

-

-

7,125

-

(36)

-

-

-

-

-

23,625
-

(21,330)

23,625
(21,330)

Balance at May 31, 2009

18,750,000

1,875

-

-

7,125

23,625

(21,366)

11,259

Issuance of common stock
Cancellation of common
stock
Issuance of common stock
Issuance of warrants
Conversion of loan to equity
Net loss

12,500,000

1,250

-

-

28,750

(23,625)

(18,750,000)
37,500,013
-

(1,875)
3,750
-

-

-

1,875
446,250
224,442
12,400
-

-

5,000

-

50,000,013

$

$

-

$

$

7,125

$

-

Balance at May 31, 2010

-

$

-

Common stock subscribed
Net loss

$

720,842

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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-

-

-

Total
Equity

-

Balance at May 31, 2008

$

Common
Stock
Subscribed

1,875

Net loss

18,750,000

Additional
Paid
in Capital

Preferred Stock
Shares
Amount

Deficit
accumulated
During
Exploration
Stage

$

(36)
8,964

-

6,375

(920,954)
$

(942,320)

9,000

450,000
224,442
12,400
(920,954)
$

(216,478)

Laredo Oil, Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Enterprise)
Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended
May 31, 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss
Issuance of stock for services
Amortization of debt discount
Amortization of debt financing fees
Increase in prepaid expenses
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities

$

Date of Inception
(March 31, 2008)
through May 31, 2010

Year Ended
May 31, 2009

(920,954)
450,000
8,890
6,085
(33,350)
266,220

$

(21,330)
80

$

(942,320)
450,000
8,890
6,085
(33,350)
266,300

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(223,109)

(21,250)

(244,395)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

-

-

-

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Officer advances
Proceeds from note payable
Proceeds Issuance of convertible notes payable
Issuance of common stock

75,000
275,000
30,000

12,400
-

12,400
75,000
275,000
39,000

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

380,000

12,400

401,400

Net increase in cash

156,891

Cash at beginning of period

(8,850)

114

CASH AT END OF PERIOD

$

Supplemental disclosures
Officer advances converted to equity
Debt financing expense on convertible debt
Issuance of warrants in connection with bridge financing

157,005

8,964
$

12,400
68,750
224,442

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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157,005

114

-

$

157,005

12,400
68,750
224,442

Laredo Oil, Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Enterprise)
Notes to Financial Statements
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared by the Company. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (which include only normal
recurring adjustments) necessary to present fairly the financial position, results of operations and cash flows as of and for the periods ended May 31, 2010 and
for all periods presented have been made.
Laredo Oil, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware on March 31, 2008 under the name of “Laredo Mining, Inc.” with
authorized common stock of 90,000,000 shares at $0.0001 par value and authorized preferred stock of 10,000,000 shares at $0.0001 par value. October 21,
2009 the name was changed to “Laredo Oil, Inc.” Effective October 21, 2009, all shares of the Company’s common stock issued and outstanding were
combined and reclassified on a 1-to-6.25 basis. In connection with this change, the Certificate of Incorporation was amended to retain the par value at $0.0001
per share.
The Company currently is in the early stage of executing its business plan and, in accordance with ASC 915 “Development Stage Entities,” is considered an
Exploration Stage Enterprise. The Company has been in the exploration stage since its formation and has not yet realized any revenues from its planned
operations.
NOTE 2 - GOING CONCERN
Future issuances of the Company's equity or debt securities will be required in order for the Company to continue to finance its operations and continue as a
going concern. The Company's present revenues are insufficient to meet operating expenses.
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern, which contemplates, among other
things, the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company has incurred cumulative net losses of $942,230
since its inception and requires capital to implement its strategic plan. The Company's ability to raise additional capital through the future issuances of common
stock is unknown. The obtainment of additional financing, the successful development of the Company's contemplated plan of operations, and its transition,
ultimately, to the attainment of profitable operations are necessary for the Company to continue operations. The ability to successfully resolve these factors raise
substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
The financial statements of the Company do not include any adjustments that may result from the outcome of these aforementioned uncertainties.
NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
USE OF ESTIMATES
Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Those
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and
expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
CASH
For the Statement of Cash Flows, all highly liquid investments with maturity of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents. There were no cash
equivalents as of May 31, 2010 and May 31, 2009.
PREPAID EXPENSES
The Company financed directors’ and officers’ insurance and is amortizing the expense over the 12 month contract life.
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company's financial instruments as defined by FASB ASC 825-10-50 include cash, trade accounts receivable, and accounts payable, accrued expenses and
notes payable. All instruments are accounted for on a historical cost basis, which, due to the short maturity of these financial instruments, approximates fair
value at May 31, 2010.
FASB ASC 820 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. ASC 820 establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value as
follows:
Level 1. Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets;
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Level 2. Inputs, other than the quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3. Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which requires the reporting entity to develop its own assumptions.
The Company does not have any assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at May 31, 2010 and 2009. The Company did not have any fair
value adjustments for assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis during the periods ended May 31, 2010 and 2009.
SHARE BASED EXPENSES
ASC 718 "Compensation - Stock Compensation" codified SFAS No. 123 prescribes accounting and reporting standards for all stock-based payments award to
employees, including employee stock options, restricted stock, employee stock purchase plans and stock appreciation rights. , may be classified as either equity
or liabilities. The Company should determine if a present obligation to settle the share-based payment transaction in cash or other assets exists. A present
obligation to settle in cash or other assets exists if: (a) the option to settle by issuing equity instruments lacks commercial substance or ( b) the present obligation
is implied because of an entity's past practices or stated policies. If a present obligation exists, the transaction should be recognized as a liability; otherwise, the
transaction should be recognized as equity.
The Company accounts for stock-based compensation issued to non-employees and consultants in accordance with the provisions of ASC 505-50 "Equity Based Payments to Non-Employees" which codified SFAS 123 and the Emerging Issues Task Force consensus in Issue No. 96-18 ("EITF 96-18"), "Accounting
for Equity Instruments that are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services". Measurement of share-based
payment transactions with non-employees shall be based on the fair value of whichever is more reliably measurable: (a) the goods or services received; or ( b)
the equity instruments issued. The fair value of the share-based payment transaction should be determined at the earlier of performance commitment date or
performance completion date.
INCOME TAXES
The Company accounts for income taxes by the asset and liability method in accordance with ASC Topic 740 “ Income Taxes.” Under this method, current
income taxes are recognized for the estimated income taxes payable for the current year. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized in the current
year for temporary differences between the tax and accounting bases of assets and liabilities as well as for the benefit of losses available to be carried forward to
future years for tax purposes that are likely to be realized. In addition, a valuation allowance is established to reduce any deferred tax asset for which it is
determined that it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized.
On March 31, 2008, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48”), “ Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes”, (codified in FASB ASC Topic 740). Topic 740 contains a two-step approach to recognizing and measuring uncertain tax positions taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. The first step is to determine if the weight of available evidence indicates that it is more likely than not that the tax position
will be sustained in an audit, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes. The second step is to measure the tax benefit as the largest
amount that is more than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company recognizes interest and penalties accrued on unrecognized tax
benefits within general and administrative expense. To the extent that accrued interest and penalties do not ultimately become payable, amounts accrued will be
reduced and reflected as a reduction in general and administrative expenses in the period that such determination is made.
There was no significant effect of adopting Topic 740 on the Company.
RECENT AND ADOPTED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
The Company refers to FASB ASC 605-25 “Multiple Element Arrangements” in recognizing revenue from agreements with multiple deliverables. This statement
provides principles for allocation of consideration among its multiple-elements, allowing more flexibility in identifying and accounting for separate deliverables
under an arrangement. The EITF introduces as estimated selling price method for valuing the elements of a bundled arrangement if vendor-specific objective
evidence or third-party evidence of selling price is nor available, and significantly expands related disclosure requirements. This standard is effective on a
prospective basis for revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010. Alternatively, adaptation may
be on a retrospective basis, and early application is permitted. The Company does not expect the adoption of this statement to have a material effect on its
consolidated financial statements or disclosures.
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
RECENT AND ADOPTED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS - continued
In August 2009, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2009-05,” Measuring Liabilities at Fair Value,” (“ASU 2009-05”). ASU 2009-05 provides
guidance on measuring the fair value of liabilities and effective for the first interim or annual reporting period beginning after its issuance. The Company’s
adoption of ASU 2009-05 did not have an effect on its disclosure of the fair value of its liabilities.
RECENTLY ISSUED STANDARDS
FASB ASC Topic 810, “Consolidation” was amended in June 2009, by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 167, Amendments to FASB
Interpretation No. 46R (“Statement No. 167”). Statement No. 167 amends FASB Interpretation No. 46R, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities an
Interpretation of ARB No. 51, (“FIN 46R”) to require an analysis to determine whether a company has a controlling financial interest in a variable interest entity.
This analysis identifies the primary beneficiary of a variable entity as the enterprise that has a) the power to direct the activities of a variable interest entity that
most significantly impact the entity’s economic performance and b) the obligation to absorb losses of the entity that could potentially be significant to the variable
entity or the right to receive benefits from the entity that could potentially be significant to the variable interest entity. The statement requires an ongoing
assessment of whether a company is the primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity when the holders of the entity, as a group, lose power, through voting or
similar rights, to direct the actions that most significantly affect the entity’s economic performance. This statement also enhances disclosures about a company’s
involvement in variable interest entities. Statement No. 167 is effective as of the beginning of the first annual reporting period that begins after November 15,
2009. The Company does not expect the adoption of Statement No. 167 to have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations.
NOTE 4 - LOSS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net loss available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted loss per share gives effect to all dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period. Dilutive loss per share excludes all
potential common shares if their effect is anti-dilutive. As of May 31, 2010, warrants to purchase 687,500 shares of common stock were not included in the
computation of diluted net loss per share because they were anti-dilutive. In addition, shares of common stock issuable on conversion of notes payable were not
included in the computation of diluted net loss per share because they were anti-dilutive. As of May 31, 2010 and since inception, the Company had no dilutive
potential common shares.
Effective October 21, 2009, all shares of the Company’s common stock issued and outstanding were combined and reclassified on a 1-to-6.25 basis. The effect
of this stock split has been retroactively applied to all periods presented.
For the Year Ended
May 31,
2010
2009
Numerator - net loss attributable to
common stockholders

$

Denominator - weighted average
number of common shares outstanding
Basic and diluted loss
per common share

(920,954) $

(21,330)

42,640,035

$

18,750,000

0.02 $

0.00

NOTE 5 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The Company is not presently involved in any litigation.
NOTE 6 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
On October 16, 2009, Nancy L. Farrell, formerly the Company’s President, Secretary, Treasurer, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Principal
Accounting Officer and sole director, entered into a purchase agreement with Mark See, pursuant to which Mr. See acquired 18,750,000 shares of common
stock of the Company for aggregate consideration of $225,000. Upon the closing of the purchase, Mr. See acquired 60% of the Company’s issued and
outstanding common stock and attained voting control of the Company. Ms. Farrell resigned from all of her positions with the Company. Immediately prior to
her resignation on October 16, 2009, she appointed Mark See to serve as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Secretary and sole director. On October 19,
2009, Mr. See entered into a cancellation agreement with the Company, pursuant to which he agreed to return an aggregate of 18,750,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock to the Company for cancellation. Such shares were returned to the authorized capital of the Company.
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NOTE 6 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued
In October, the sole director, Ms. Farrell, forgave debt to the Company in the amount of $12,400 as part of the change of control transaction. This amount has
been recorded as an addition to paid in capital.
During 2010, David Morris who is a shareholder owning over 5% of the Company’s stock was reimbursed $3,279.69 for expenses incurred for activities
benefitting the Company.
In both November and December, the Company issued a note payable (see Note 8) to Mr. Kenneth Lipson who is a shareholder owning over 5% of the
Company’s common stock.
NOTE 7 - STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Effective October 21, 2009, all shares of the Company’s common stock issued and outstanding were combined and reclassified on a 1-to-6.25 basis. The effect
of this stock split has been retroactively applied to all periods presented.
The stockholders' equity section of the Company contains the following classes of capital stock as of May 31, 2010
•
Preferred Shares, $ 0.0001 par value: 10,000,000 shares authorized.
•
Common Stock, $ 0.0001 par value: 90,000,000 shares authorized; 50,000,013 shares issued and outstanding.
On March 31, 2008 the Company issued a total of 18,750,000 shares of common stock to one director for total cash of $9,000.
On June 4, 2009 the Company issued a total of 12,500,000 shares of common stock to various individuals for cash in the amount of $0.0024 per share for a total
of $30,000 to complete the Company’s S-1 offering.
On October 19, 2009, the board of directors of the Company approved the issuance of an aggregate of 37,500,013 shares of the Company’s common stock as
consideration for services rendered to the Company for a total fair market value of $450,000, based on the per share acquisition price of Ms. Farrell’s stock as
described in Note 6.
As of May 31, 2010, the Company has not granted any stock options.
The following table summarizes information about options/warrants granted during the years ended May 31, 2010:

Number of
Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price

Balance, May 31, 2009
Warrants granted and assumed
Warrants expired
Warrants cancelled, forfeited
Warrants exercised

- $
707,500
—
—
—

2.00
—
—
—

Balance, May 31, 2010

707,500 $

2.00

During the year ended May 31, 2010, the Company issued warrants for 687,500 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $2.00 as part of convertible
debts offered totaling $275,000, see Note 8 for further discussions. All warrants as of May 31, 2010 are exercisable.
NOTE 8 - NOTES PAYABLE
During the year ended May 31, 2010, Laredo Oil, Inc. offered debts in the amount of $300,000 pursuant to a convertible Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement
(the “Purchase Agreement”).
Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the Subordinated Convertible Promissory Notes (“Notes”), at the option of the holder, are either redeemable at par or
convertible at a 20% discount to securities sold in a future financing greater than $7.5 million (the “New Financing”). The Company cannot prepay the Notes
prior to the New Financing. Notes elected for redemption will be repaid with accrued interest at the close of the New Financing. The Notes bear interest at a
rate of ten percent per annum and if not redeemed, are automatically converted to the securities issued under the New Financing. The Purchase Agreement
gives the Note holders five year Warrants to Purchase Stock of Laredo Oil, Inc. to purchase 750,000 shares of the same security, at the same price, as that
issued in the New Financing.
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NOTE 8 - NOTES PAYABLE - continued
As of May 31, 2010, the Company issued nine convertible notes totaling $275,000 related to the $300,000 Purchase Agreement. In addition, the Company
issued warrants to purchase 687,500 aggregate shares of capital stock. These warrants are exercisable for five years from the date of the Notes and
warrants. The exercise price of each warrant will be equal to the lesser of the conversion price of the corresponding Note or $2.00. Total proceeds from the
issuance of the Notes were allocated between the notes and warrants on a relative fair value basis. The total value was allocated to the warrants based on the
date of each grant. The fair value of the warrants was determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model based on the following weighted average
assumptions:
2010
Risk-free interest rates
Contractual life
Expected volatility
Dividend yield

2.34%
2.5 years
117.59-150.66%
0%

The value of the warrants was recorded as a deferred debt discount against the proceeds of the Notes received and amortized over an expected 30-month
expected life of each warrant.
The notes are convertible at a 20% discount to the share price of the offering in the New Financing. A debt financing premium has been recorded as an asset
in conjunction with this issuance. The financing premium has been amortized over the expected 12-month term of each note.
In November and December, 2009, the Company respectively entered into a $25,000 and $50,000 bridge note with a related party (see Note 6). Interest
expense accrues on both notes at a rate of 7% per annum. The term of the notes are that both outstanding principal and accrued interest are to be repaid within
one week of the Company’s receiving permanent financing of at least $2.5 million. On May 31, 2010 the principal amount outstanding was $75,000 and interest
accrued was $2,474.
During fiscal year 2010, a $12,400 note payable was forgiven by the former director as part of the change of control which occurred on October 16, 2009 (see
Note. 6).
NOTE 9 - PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES
We did not provide any current or deferred U.S. federal income tax provision or benefit for any of the periods presented because we have experienced operating
losses since inception. Per the authoritative literature when it is more likely than not that a tax asset cannot be realized through future income the Company
must allow for this future tax benefit. We provided a full valuation allowance on the net deferred tax asset, consisting of net operating loss carryforwards,
because management has determined that it is more likely than not that we will not earn income sufficient to realize the deferred tax assets during
the carryforward period.
The Company has not taken any tax positions that, if challenged, would have a material effect on the financial statements for the twelve-months ended May 31,
2010, or during the prior two years.
The components of the Company's deferred tax asset as of May 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

Net operating loss
Valuation allowance
Net deferred tax asset

$
$

2010
162,298 $
(162,298)
0 $

2009
7,264
(7,264)
0

A reconciliation of income taxes computed at the statutory rate to the income tax amount recorded is as follows:

Tax at statutory rate (35%)
Increase in valuation allowance

$

2010
155,033 $
(155,033)

Net deferred tax asset

$

0 $

2009
Since Inception
7,252 $
162,298
(7,252)
(162,298)
0 $

0

The net federal operating loss carry forward will expire between 2028 and 2030. This carry forward may be limited upon the consummation of a business
combination under IRC Section 381.
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In June 2010, the Company issued the remaining $25,000 convertible note related to the $300,000 Purchase Agreement for $25,000 with 87,500 warrants to
purchase stock pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Agreement.
On July 26, 2010, Laredo Oil, Inc. “the Company” entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement with Seaside 88, LP and Sutter Securities Incorporated (the
“Purchase Agreement”) for the private placement of 1,000,000 shares of its common stock and warrants to purchase 750,000 shares of its common stock to
Seaside 88, LP for an aggregate purchase price of $500,000, or $0.50 per share. The transactions contemplated by the agreement closed on July 27, 2010.
Sutter Securities Incorporated received 225,000 warrants, with substantially the same terms as those warrants received by Seaside 88, LP, as compensation for
its services as the placement agent in connection with this transaction. The warrants are immediately exercisable following issuance, have a term of exercise of
5 years and an exercise price of $0.50 per share. The shares of common stock offered in the private placement and the shares issuable upon exercise of the
warrants have piggy-back registration rights if the Company elects to file a registration statement in the future, subject to customary underwriter cut-backs. The
shares are price protected in the event the Company issues common stock to another investor at a price below $0.50 per share, until the Company raises
additional financing of at least $500,000. Moreover, should the Company fail to raise $5,000,000 in equity within six months from the closing date, another one
million shares will be issued to the investor and the warrant exercise price will be adjusted to $0.25 per share for all warrants issued in connection with this
financing.
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EXHIBIT 10.1
EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
This EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is made and entered into as of the 16th day of October, 2009, by and between
LAREDO OIL, INC., a Delaware corporation with offices at 580 Highway 335, Big Horn Wyoming. 82833 (the "Corporation"), and MARK SEE, an individual
residing at 44 Polo Drive, Big Horn, WY 82833 ("Executive").
WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, the Executive desires to be employed by the Company as its Chief Executive Officer and the Company wishes to employ Executive in such
capacity;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the respective covenants and agreements of the parties contained in this document,
the Company and Executive hereby agree as follows:
1.
Employment and Duties. The Company agrees to employ and Executive agrees to serve as the Company's Chief Executive Officer. The duties
and responsibilities of Executive shall include the duties and responsibilities as the Board may from time to time reasonably assign to Executive.
Executive shall devote substantially all of his working time and efforts during the Company's normal business hours to the business and affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries and to the diligent performance of the duties and responsibilities duly assigned to him pursuant to this Agreement.
2.
Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall continue for a period of three years and shall be
automatically renewed for successive one year periods thereafter unless either party provides the other party with written notice of his or its intention not to
renew this Agreement at least three months prior to the expiration of the initial term or any renewal term of this Agreement. "Employment Period" shall mean the
initial three year term plus renewals, if any.
3.
Place of Employment. Executive's services shall be performed at the Company's offices located in Big Horn, Wyoming and any other location
where the Company now or hereafter has a business facility. The parties acknowledge, however, that Executive may be required to travel in connection with the
performance of his duties hereunder. The Company will not require the Executive to relocate to any other location.
4.
Base Salary. For all services to be rendered by Executive pursuant to this Agreement, the Company agrees to pay Executive during the
Employment Period an initial base salary (the "Base Salary") at an annual rate of $240,000 and after the Company is funded (minimum of $7.5 million), the Base
Salary will then be $450,000. The Base Salary shall be paid in periodic installments in accordance with the Company's regular payroll practices. The Base
Salary shall have an automatic Cost of Living Increase of 10% per annum.
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The Board shall review the Executive's Base Salary annually and shall make a recommendation as to whether such Base Salary should be increased but
not decreased.
5.

Bonuses. During the term of this Agreement, the Executive shall be entitled to annual bonuses, as determined by the Board.

6.

Expenses. Executive shall be entitled to the following monthly allowances:
a) Automobile allowance of $1000/month.
b) Professional - of S1000/month for Petroleum professional societies and dues (i.e., Society Petroleum Engineers, Society Mining
Engineers) and organizations (i.e., Denver, Montana & Houston Petroleum Club's)
c) Communication - of $500/month for mobile devices and associated costs.

Executive shall also be entitled to prompt reimbursement by the Company for all reasonable ordinary and necessary travel, entertainment, and other
expenses incurred by Executive while employed (in accordance with the policies and procedures established by the Company for its senior executive officers) in
the performance of his duties and responsibilities under this Agreement; provided, that Executive shall properly account for such expenses in accordance with
Company policies and procedures.
7.
Other Benefits. During the term of this Agreement, the Executive shall participate in incentive, savings, retirement (401(k)), and welfare benefit
plans, including, without limitation, health, medical, dental, vision, life (including accidental death and dismemberment) and disability insurance plans
(collectively, "Benefit Plans"), in substantially the same manner and at substantially the same levels as the Company makes such opportunities available to the
Company's managerial or salaried executive employees.
8.
Vacation. During the term of this Agreement, the Executive shall be entitled to accrue, on a pro rata basis, fifteen (15) paid vacation days per
year in the first year and twenty (20) thereafter. Vacation shall be taken at such times as are mutually convenient to the Executive and the Company and no
more than ten (10) consecutive days shall be taken at any one time without Company approval in advance. The Executive shall be entitled to carry over any
accrued, unused vacation days from year to year, or in-lieu of accrual, the Company will pay out unused vacation days.
9.
Stock Grants. The Executive is granted Two Million and Fifty Five Thousand Eighty Three (2,055,083) pre-split (8 million outstanding) shares of
common stock of the Company.
10.

Termination of Employment.

(a)
Death. If Executive dies during the Employment Period, this Agreement and the Executive's employment with the Company shall automatically
terminate and the Company shall have no further obligations to the Executive or his heirs, administrators or executors with respect to compensation and benefits
accruing thereafter, except for the obligation to pay to the Executive's heirs, administrators or executors any earned but unpaid Base Salary and vacation pay,
unpaid pro rata annual bonus through the date of death and reimbursement of any and all reasonable expenses paid or incurred by the Executive in connection
with and related to the performance of his duties and responsibilities for the Company during the period ending on the termination date. The Company shall
deduct, from all payments made hereunder, all applicable taxes, including income tax, FICA and FUTA, and other appropriate deductions. In addition, the
Executive's spouse and minor children shall be entitled to continued coverage for a period of two years following the termination of employment, at the
Company's expense, under all health, medical, dental and vision insurance plans in which the Executive was a participant immediately prior to his last date of
employment with the Company.
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(b)
Disability. In the event that, during the term of this Agreement the Executive shall be prevented from performing his duties and responsibilities
hereunder to the full extent required by the Company by reason of Disability (as defined below), this Agreement and the Executive's employment with the
Company shall automatically terminate and the Company shall have no further obligations or liability to the Executive or his heirs, administrators or executors
with respect to compensation and benefits accruing thereafter, except for the obligation to pay the Executive or his heirs, administrators or executors any earned
but unpaid Base Salary, unpaid pro rata annual bonus and unused vacation days accrued through the Executive's last date of Employment with the Company
and reimbursement of any and all reasonable expenses paid or incurred by the Executive in connection with and related to the performance of his duties and
responsibilities for the Company during the period ending on the termination date. The Company shall deduct, from all payments made hereunder, all applicable
taxes, including income tax, FICA and FUTA, and other appropriate deductions through the last date of the Executive's employment with the Company. For
purposes of this Agreement, "Disability" shall mean a physical or mental disability that prevents the performance by the Executive, with or without reasonable
accommodation, of his duties and responsibilities hereunder for a period of not less than an aggregate of three months during any twelve consecutive months.
(c)

Cause.

(1)
At any time during the Employment Period, the Company may terminate this Agreement and the Executive's employment hereunder for
Cause. For purposes of this Agreement, "Cause" shall mean: (a) the damaging, willful and continued failure of the Executive to perform substantially his
duties and responsibilities for the Company (other than any such failure resulting from Executive's death or Disability) after a written demand by the
Board for substantial performance is delivered to the Executive by the Company, which specifically identifies the manner in which the Board believes that
the Executive has not substantially performed his duties and responsibilities in a reasonable manner, which willful and continued failure is not cured by
the Executive within thirty (30) days of his receipt of such written demand. It will then be the responsibility of the Board to substantially and
incontrovertibly prove the matter is not cured, and do so with a unanimous Board vote, followed by arbitration: (b) violation of Sections 11 or 12 of this
Agreement, or (c) fraud, dishonesty or gross misconduct which is materially and demonstratively injurious to the Company. Termination under clauses
(b)or (c) of this Section 10(c)(1) shall not be subject to cure.
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(2)
Upon termination of this Agreement for Cause, the Company shall have no further obligations or liability to the Executive or his heirs,
administrators or executors with respect to compensation and benefits thereafter, except for the obligation to pay the Executive any earned but unpaid
Base Salary and vacation pay, and reimbursement of any and all reasonable expenses paid or incurred by the Executive in connection with and related
to the performance of his duties and responsibilities for the Company during the period ending on the termination date. The Company shall deduct, from
all payments made hereunder, all applicable taxes, including income tax, FICA and FUTA, and other appropriate deductions.
(d)
Change of Control. For purposes of this Agreement, "Change of Control - shall mean the occurrence of any one or more of the following: (1) the
accumulation, whether directly, indirectly, beneficially or of record, by any individual, entity or group (within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) or 14(d)(2) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) of 50% or more of the shares of the outstanding Common Stock of the Company, whether by merger,
consolidation, sale or other transfer of shares of Common Stock (other than a merger or consolidation where the stockholders of the Company prior to the
merger or consolidation are the holders of a majority of the voting securities of the entity that survives such merger or consolidation), or (ii) a sale of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Company, provided, however, that the following acquisitions shall not constitute a Change of Control for the purposes of this
Agreement: (A) any acquisitions of Common Stock or securities convertible into Common Stock directly from the Company, or (B) any acquisition of Common
Stock or securities convertible into Common Stock by any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored by or maintained by the Company. (C) The
Company shall consolidate, merge or exchange securities with any other entity and the stockholders of the Company immediately before the effective time of
such transaction do not beneficially own, immediately after the effective time of such transaction, shares entitling such stockholders to a majority of all votes
(without consideration of the rights of any class of stock entitled to elect directors by a separate class vote) to which all stockholders of the corporation issuing
cash or securities in the consolidation, merger or share exchange would be entitled for the purpose of electing directors or where the Current Directors
immediately after the effective time of the consolidation, merger or share exchange would not constitute a majority of the Board of Directors of the corporation
issuing cash or securities in the consolidation, merger or share exchange.
(e)

Good Reason.

(1)
At any time during the term of this Agreement, subject to the conditions set forth in Section 10(e)(2) below, the Executive may terminate
this Agreement and the Executive's employment with the Company for "Good Reason." For purposes of this Agreement, "Good Reason" shall mean the
occurrence of any of the following events: (A) the assignment, without the Executive's consent, to the Executive of duties that are significantly different
from, and that result in a substantial diminution of, the duties that he assumed on the Effective Date; (B) the assignment, without the Executive's consent,
to the Executive of a title that is different from and subordinate to the title Chief Executive Officer; (C) any termination of the Executive's employment by
the Company within 12 months after a Change of Control, other than a termination for Cause, death or Disability; or (D) material breach by the Company
of this Agreement: (E) any other reason, as determined by the Executive, including Section 10(e)(4) below.
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(2)
The Executive shall not be entitled to terminate this Agreement for Good Reason unless and until he shall have delivered written notice to
the Company of his intention to terminate this Agreement and his employment with the Company for Good Reason, which notice specifies in reasonable
detail the circumstances claimed to provide the basis for such termination for Good Reason, and the Company shall not have eliminated the
circumstances constituting Good Reason within 30 days of its receipt from the Executive of such written notice, with the exception of 10(e)(4), which
requires no notice period.
(3)
In the event that the Executive terminates this Agreement and his employment with the Company for Good Reason, the Company shall
pay or provide to the Executive (or, following his death, to the Executive's heirs, administrators or executors): (A) any earned but unpaid Base Salary,
unpaid pro rata annual bonus and unused vacation days accrued through the Executive's last day of employment with the Company; (B) continued
coverage, at the Company's expense, under all Benefits Plans in which the Executive was a participant immediately prior to his last date of employment
with the Company, or, in the event that any such Benefit Plans do not permit coverage of the Executive following his last date of employment with the
Company, under benefit plans that provide no less coverage than such Benefit Plans, for a period of two years following the termination of employment;
(C) reimbursement of any and all reasonable expenses paid or incurred by the Executive in connection with and related to the performance of his duties
and responsibilities for the Company during the period ending on the termination date; and (D) the Base Salary, as in effect immediately prior to the
Executive's termination hereunder, and any bonuses earned, during the remainder of the Employment Period. All payments due hereunder shall be
payable within 30 days The Company shall deduct, from all payments made hereunder, all applicable taxes, including income tax, FICA and FUTA, and
other appropriate deductions.
(4)
In the event the Company has not been funded (minimum of $7.5 million) by December 31, 2009, the Executive may, at his sole
discretion, terminate this agreement in its entirety. If the Executive elects to terminate this agreement, no notice will be required of the Executive to the
company and any and all obligations of the Executive to the Company under this, or any other agreement will be made immediately unenforceable, null
and void. The Executive shall be relieved of his obligations pursuant to Sections 11 and 12.
(f)

Without "Good Reason" by Executive or Without "Cause" by the Company.

(1)
By the Executive. At any time during the term of this Agreement, the Executive shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement and the
Executive's employment with the Company without Good Reason by providing prior written notice of at least 30 days to the Company. Upon termination
by the Executive of this Agreement and the Executive's employment with the Company without Good Reason, the Company shall have no further
obligations or liability to the Executive or his heirs, administrators or executors with respect to compensation and benefits thereafter, except for the
obligation to pay the Executive any earned but unpaid Base Salary, unused vacation days accrued through the Executive's last day of employment with
the Company and reimbursement of any and all reasonable expenses paid or incurred by the Executive in connection with and related to the
performance of his duties and responsibilities for the Company during the period ending on the termination date. The Company shall deduct, from all
payments made hereunder, all applicable taxes, including income tax, FICA and FUTA, and other appropriate deductions.
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(2)
By the Company. At any time during the term of this Agreement, the Company shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement and the
Executive's employment with the Company without Cause by providing prior written notice of at least 30 days to the Executive. Upon termination by the
Company of this Agreement and the Executive's employment with the Company without Cause, the Company shall pay or provide to the Executive (or,
following his death, to the Executive's heirs, administrators or executors): (A) any earned but unpaid Base Salary, unpaid pro rata annual bonus and
unused vacation days accrued through the Executive's last day of employment with the Company; (B) continued coverage, at the Company's expense,
under all Benefits Plans in which the Executive was a participant immediately prior to his last date of employment with the Company, or, in the event that
any such Benefit Plans do not permit coverage of the Executive following his last date of employment with the Company, under benefit plans that
provide no less coverage than such Benefit Plans, for a period of two years following the termination of employment; (C) reimbursement of any and all
reasonable expenses paid or incurred by the Executive in connection with and related to the performance of his duties and responsibilities for the
Company during the period ending on the termination date; and (D) the Base Salary, as in effect immediately prior to the Executive's termination
hereunder, and any bonuses earned, for a three year period. All payments due hereunder shall be payable according to the Company's standard payroll
procedures. The Company shall deduct, from all payments made hereunder, all applicable taxes, including income tax, FICA and FUTA, and other
appropriate deductions. (E) if the Change of Control occurs prior to the fourth anniversary of the Effective Date of this Agreement, the Executive shall be
relieved of his obligations pursuant to Sections 1 1 and 12 insofar as those sections relate to continuing obligations of the Executive following the
termination of his employment.
11.

Confidential Information.

(a)
Disclosure of Confidential Information. The Executive recognizes, acknowledges and agrees that he has had and will continue to have access to
secret and confidential information regarding the Company, its subsidiaries and their respective businesses ("Confidential Information"), including but not limited
to, its products, formulae, patents, sources of supply, customer dealings, data, and business plans, provided such information i s not in or does not hereafter
become part of the public domain, or become known to others through no fault of the Executive. The Executive acknowledges that such information is of great
value to the Company, is the sole property of the Company, and has been and will be acquired by him in confidence. I n consideration of the obligations
undertaken by the Company herein, the Executive will not, at any time, during his employment hereunder, reveal, divulge or make known to any person, any
information acquired by the Executive during the course of his employment, which is treated as confidential by the Company, and not otherwise in the public
domain. The provisions of this Section 11 shall survive the termination of the Executive's employment hereunder other than as specified in Section 10(f)(2)(E)
and 11(d).
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(b)
In the event that the Executive's employment with the Company terminates for any reason, the Executive shall deliver forthwith to the Company
any and all originals and copies, including those in electronic or digital formats, of Confidential Information.
(c)
The Executive brings 20 years of Oil and Gas "know how" to the Company, which is his sole and exclusive property. If the Executive's
Employment is terminated, for any reason, by either the Company or the Executive, for cause or without or on any other basis, the Executive shall solely and
individually retain this "know how", with no survival beyond the termination of employment.
12.

Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation .

(a)
The Executive agrees and acknowledges that the Confidential Information that the Executive has already received and will receive is valuable
to the Company and that its protection and maintenance constitutes a legitimate business interest of the Company, to be protected by the non-competition
restrictions set forth herein. The Executive agrees and acknowledges that the non-competition restrictions set forth herein are reasonable and necessary and do
not impose undue hardship or burdens on the Executive. The Executive also acknowledges that the products and services developed or provided by the
Company, its affiliates and/or its clients or customers are or are intended to be sold, provided, licensed and/or distributed to customers and clients in and
throughout the United States (the "Territory") (to the extent the Company comes to operate, either directly or through the engagement of a distributor or joint or
co-venturer, or sell a significant amount of its products and services to customers located, in areas other than the United States during the term of the
Employment Period, the definition of Territory shall be automatically expanded to cover such other areas), and that the Territory, scope of prohibited competition,
and time duration set forth in the non-competition restrictions set forth below are reasonable and necessary to maintain the value of the Confidential Information
of, and to protect the goodwill and other legitimate business interests of, the Company, its affiliates and/or its clients or customers.
(b)
The Executive hereby agrees and covenants that he shall not, without the prior written consent of the Company, directly or indirectly, in any
capacity whatsoever, including, without limitation, as an employee, employer, consultant, principal, partner, shareholder, officer, director or any other individual
or representative capacity (other than a holder of less than two percent (2%) of the outstanding voting shares of any publicly held company), or whether on the
Executive's own behalf or on behalf of any other person or entity or otherwise howsoever, during the Employment Period, to the extent described below, within
the Territory:
(1)
Be connected with the ownership, management, operation or control of any business in competition with the primary business of the
Company with the following exceptions:
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(A)
The Executive is allowed to acquire operating oil and gas fields, working interests and all forms of royalty, mineral and net profit
interests in any and all Oil or Gas Properties including property(s) owned by the Company. The Employee is allowed to use any and all Company data and
information for this purpose.
(B)
The intent of the non-competition and non-solicitation is to protect corporate opportunities and is not intended as a "restraint of
trade" for the Executive, post-termination. The Executive's expertise is in the Oil and Gas Industry and his livelihood is dependent upon employ in the industry.
He shall retain any and all means whereby he can be gainfully employed in the Oil and Gas Industry, post-termination.
(2)
Recruit, solicit or hire, or attempt to recruit, solicit or hire, any employee, of the Company to leave the employment thereof, whether or
not any such employee is party to an employment agreement;
(3)
Attempt in any manner to solicit or accept from any customer of the Company, with whom the Company had significant contact during
Executive's employment by the Company (whether under this Agreement or otherwise), business of the kind or competitive with the business done by
the Company with such customer or to persuade or attempt to persuade any such customer to cease to do business or to reduce the amount of
business which such customer has customarily done or might do with the Company, or if any such customer elects to move its business to a person
other than the Company, provide any services (of the kind or competitive with the Business of the Company) for such customer, or have any discussions
regarding any such service with such customer, on behalf of such other person; or
(4)
Interfere with any relationship, contractual or otherwise, between the Company and any other party, including, without limitation, any
supplier, distributor, co- venturer or joint venturer of the Company to discontinue or reduce its business with the Company or otherwise interfere in any
way with the Business of the Company.
With respect to the activities described in Paragraphs (2), (3) and (4) above, the restrictions of this Section I2(b) shall continue beyond the Employment Period
until one year following the termination of this Agreement or of the Executive's employment with the Company, whichever occurs later. Furthermore, if the
Company terminates Executive's employment for Cause or if Executive terminates his employment without Good Reason, then the restrictions of this
Section 12(b) shall continue with respect to the activities described in Paragraph (1), above, beyond the Employment Period until one year following the
termination of this Agreement or of the Executive's employment with the Company, whichever occurs later.
13.

Miscellaneous.

(a)
The Executive acknowledges that the services to be rendered by him under the provisions of this Agreement are of a special. unique and
extraordinary character and that it would be difficult or impossible to replace such services.
(b)
Neither the Executive nor the Company may assign or delegate any of their rights or duties under this Agreement without the express written
consent of the other; provided, however, that the Company shall have the right to delegate its obligation of payment of all sums due to the Executive hereunder,
provided that such delegation shall not relieve the Company of any of its obligations hereunder and the successor shall deem this Agreement to be binding in its
entirety.
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(c)
This Agreement constitutes and embodies the full and complete understanding and agreement of the parties with respect to the Executive's
employment by the Company, supersedes all prior understandings and agreements, whether oral or written, between the Executive and the Company, and shall
not be amended, modified or changed except by an instrument in writing executed by the party to be charged. The invalidity or partial invalidity of one or more
provisions of this Agreement shall not invalidate any other provision of this Agreement. No waiver by either party of any provision or condition to be performed
shall be deemed a waiver of similar or dissimilar provisions or conditions at the same time or any prior or subsequent time.
(d)
This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, be binding upon and enforceable against, the parties hereto and their respective successors,
heirs, beneficiaries and permitted assigns.
(e)
The headings contained in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation
of this Agreement.
(f)
All notices, requests, demands and other communications required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed
to have been duly given when personally delivered, sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or by reputable national
overnight delivery service (e.g. Federal Express) for overnight delivery to the party at the address set forth in the preamble to this Agreement, or to such other
address as either party may hereafter give the other party notice of in accordance with the provisions hereof. Notices shall be deemed given on the sooner of
the date actually received or the third business day after deposited in the mail or one business day after deposited with an overnight delivery service for
overnight delivery.
(g)
This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Wyoming without reference to
principles of conflicts of laws and each of the parties hereto irrevocably consents to the jurisdiction and venue of the federal and state courts located in the
County and State of Wyoming.
(h)
This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which
together shall constitute one of the same instrument. The parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date set forth above.
(i)
The Executive represents and warrants to the Company, that he has the full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform
his obligations hereunder and that the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the performance of his obligations hereunder will not conflict with any
agreement to which. Executive is a party.
(j)
In the event of a dispute between the Executive and the Company. the Company will be responsible for the payment of all, including all the
Executives attorneys' fees.
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(k)
Indemnification, The Company shall indemnify and hold harmless the Employee against any loss, liability, claim, damage and expense,
including the cost of defense, incurred in the course of the Employee's employment hereunder. The Company's liability hereunder shall be reduced by the
amount of insurance proceeds paid to or on behalf of the Employee with respect to an event giving rise to indemnification hereunder. This indemnification shall
survive the death or other termination of employment of the Employee and the termination of this Agreement. Any legal fees incurred by the Employee in the
enforcement of this or any other provision of this Agreement shall be promptly reimbursed by the Company as the same are incurred.
(I)

The agreement will be read in its entirety.

[Signature page follows immediately]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Executive and the Company have caused this Executive Employment Agreement to be executed as of the
date first above written.

MARK SEE
/s/ Mark See

LAREDO OIL, INC.

By: /s/ Bradley Sparks
Name: Bradley Sparks
Title: CFO
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EXHIBIT 10.2
EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this “ Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the 20th day of October, 2009, by and between
LAREDO OIL, INC., a Delaware corporation with offices at Highway 335, Big Horn Wyoming 82833 (the “Corporation”), and BRADLEY SPARKS, an individual
residing at 9452 E Heritage Trail Dr, Scottsdale AZ 85255 (“Executive”).
W I T N E S S E T H:
WHEREAS, the Executive desires to be employed by the Company as its Chief Financial Officer and the Company wishes to employ Executive in such
capacity;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the respective covenants and agreements of the parties contained in this document,
the Company and Executive hereby agree as follows:
1.
Employment and Duties. The Company agrees to employ and Executive agrees to serve as the Company's Chief Financial Officer. The duties
and responsibilities of Executive shall include the duties and responsibilities as the Board may from time to time reasonably assign to Executive.
Executive shall devote substantially all of his working time and efforts during the Company's normal business hours to the business and affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries and to the diligent performance of the duties and responsibilities duly assigned to him pursuant to this Agreement.
2
.
Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall continue for a period of three years and shall be
automatically renewed for successive one year periods thereafter unless either party provides the other party with written notice of his or its intention not to
renew this Agreement at least three months prior to the expiration of the initial term or any renewal term of this Agreement. “Employment Period” shall mean the
initial three year term plus renewals, if any.
3 .
Place of Employment. Executive's services shall be performed at the Company's offices located in (to be determined) and any other location
where the Company now or hereafter has a business facility. The parties acknowledge, however, that Executive may be required to travel in connection with the
performance of his duties hereunder. Company will pay for the relocation of Executive from Scottsdale to the Company’s offices, and pay for travel and
temporary living quarters until relocation is complete.
4 .
Base Salary. For all services to be rendered by Executive pursuant to this Agreement, the Company agrees to pay Executive during the
Employment Period an initial base salary (the "Base Salary") at an annual rate of $180,000, and after the Company is funded (minimum of $7.5 million), the
Base Salary will then be $350,000. The Base Salary shall be paid in periodic installments in accordance with the Company's regular payroll practices. The Base
Salary shall have an automatic Cost of Living Increase of 10% per annum.
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The Compensation Committee of the Board (or by the independent members of the Board, if there is no such committee) (the “Compensation
Committee”) shall review the Executive’s Base Salary annually and shall make a recommendation to the Board as to whether such Base Salary should be
increased but not decreased, which decision shall be within the Board’s sole discretion.
5.

Bonuses. During the term of this Agreement, the Executive shall be entitled to annual bonuses as determined by the Board.

6.

Expenses. Executive shall be entitled to the following monthly allowances:
a) Automobile allowance of $1000/month.
b) Professional – of $1000/month for Petroleum professional societies and dues (i.e., Society Petroleum Engineers, Society Mining
Engineers) and organizations (i.e., Denver, Montana & Houston Petroleum Club’s), and Accounting, Finance and Governance Bodies
(AICPA dues, CPE courses, FEI dues, NACD dues, etc.)
c) Communication - of $500/month for mobile devices and associated costs.

Executive shall also be entitled to prompt reimbursement by the Company for all reasonable ordinary and necessary travel, entertainment, and other
expenses incurred by Executive while employed (in accordance with the policies and procedures established by the Company for its senior executive officers) in
the performance of his duties and responsibilities under this Agreement; provided, that Executive shall properly account for such expenses in accordance with
Company policies and procedures.
7.
Other Benefits. During the term of this Agreement, the Executive shall participate in incentive, savings, retirement (401(k)), and welfare benefit
plans, including, without limitation, health, medical, dental, vision, life (including accidental death and dismemberment) and disability insurance plans
(collectively, "Benefit Plans"), in substantially the same manner and at substantially the same levels as the Company makes such opportunities available to the
Company's managerial or salaried executive employees.
8.
Vacation. During the term of this Agreement, the Executive shall be entitled to accrue, on a pro rata basis, fifteen (15) paid vacation days per
year in the first year and twenty (20) thereafter. Vacation shall be taken at such times as are mutually convenient to the Executive and the Company and no
more than ten (10) consecutive days shall be taken at any one time without Company approval in advance. The Executive shall be entitled to carry over any
accrued, unused vacation days from year to year, or in-lieu of accrual, the Company will pay out unused vacation days.
9 .
Stock Grants. The Executive is granted, four hundred fifty one thousand nine hundred seventy seven pre split (451,977) shares of common
stock of the Company.
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10.

Termination of Employment.

( a )
Death. If Executive dies during the Employment Period, this Agreement and the Executive’s employment with the Company shall
automatically terminate and the Company shall have no further obligations to the Executive or his heirs, administrators or executors with respect to
compensation and benefits accruing thereafter, except for the obligation to pay to the Executive’s heirs, administrators or executors any earned but unpaid Base
Salary and vacation pay, unpaid pro rata annual bonus through the date of death and reimbursement of any and all reasonable expenses paid or incurred by the
Executive in connection with and related to the performance of his duties and responsibilities for the Company during the period ending on the termination date.
The Company shall deduct, from all payments made hereunder, all applicable taxes, including income tax, FICA and FUTA, and other appropriate
deductions. In addition, the Executive’s spouse and minor children shall be entitled to continued coverage for a period of two years following the termination of
employment, at the Company’s expense, under all health, medical, dental and vision insurance plans in which the Executive was a participant immediately prior
to his last date of employment with the Company.
(b)
Disability. In the event that, during the term of this Agreement the Executive shall be prevented from performing his duties and responsibilities
hereunder to the full extent required by the Company by reason of Disability (as defined below), this Agreement and the Executive’s employment with the
Company shall automatically terminate and the Company shall have no further obligations or liability to the Executive or his heirs, administrators or executors
with respect to compensation and benefits accruing thereafter, except for the obligation to pay the Executive or his heirs, administrators or executors any earned
but unpaid Base Salary, unpaid pro rata annual bonus and unused vacation days accrued through the Executive’s last date of Employment with the Company
and reimbursement of any and all reasonable expenses paid or incurred by the Executive in connection with and related to the performance of his duties and
responsibilities for the Company during the period ending on the termination date. The Company shall deduct, from all payments made hereunder, all applicable
taxes, including income tax, FICA and FUTA, and other appropriate deductions through the last date of the Executive’s employment with the Company. For
purposes of this Agreement, “Disability” shall mean a physical or mental disability that prevents the performance by the Executive, with or without reasonable
accommodation, of his duties and responsibilities hereunder for a period of not less than an aggregate of three months during any twelve consecutive months.
(c)

Cause.

(1)
At any time during the Employment Period, the Company may terminate this Agreement and the Executive’s employment hereunder
for Cause. For purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” shall mean: (a) the damaging, willful and continued failure of the Executive to perform substantially
his duties and responsibilities for the Company (other than any such failure resulting from Executive’s death or Disability) after a written demand by the
Board for substantial performance is delivered to the Executive by the Company, which specifically identifies the manner in which the Board believes that
the Executive has not substantially performed his duties and responsibilities in a reasonable manner, which willful and continued failure is not cured by
the Executive within thirty (30) days of his receipt of such written demand. (b) violation of Sections 11 or 12 of this Agreement, or (d) fraud, dishonesty or
gross misconduct which is materially and demonstratively injurious to the Company. Termination under clauses (b), (c) or (d) of this Section 10(c)(1) shall
not be subject to cure.
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(2)
Upon termination of this Agreement for Cause, the Company shall have no further obligations or liability to the Executive or his heirs,
administrators or executors with respect to compensation and benefits thereafter, except for the obligation to pay the Executive any earned but unpaid
Base Salary and vacation pay, and reimbursement of any and all reasonable expenses paid or incurred by the Executive in connection with and related
to the performance of his duties and responsibilities for the Company during the period ending on the termination date. The Company shall deduct, from
all payments made hereunder, all applicable taxes, including income tax, FICA and FUTA, and other appropriate deductions.
(d)
Change of Control. For purposes of this Agreement, “Change of Control” shall mean the occurrence of any one or more of the following: (i) the
accumulation, whether directly, indirectly, beneficially or of record, by any individual, entity or group (within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) or 14(d)(2) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) of 50% or more of the shares of the outstanding Common Stock of the Company, whether by merger,
consolidation, sale or other transfer of shares of Common Stock (other than a merger or consolidation where the stockholders of the Company prior to the
merger or consolidation are the holders of a majority of the voting securities of the entity that survives such merger or consolidation), or (ii) a sale of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Company, provided, however, that the following acquisitions shall not constitute a Change of Control for the purposes of this
Agreement: (A) any acquisitions of Common Stock or securities convertible into Common Stock directly from the Company, or (B) any acquisition of Common
Stock or securities convertible into Common Stock by any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored by or maintained by the Company. (C) The
Company shall consolidate, merge or exchange securities with any other entity and the stockholders of the Company immediately before the effective time of
such transaction do not beneficially own, immediately after the effective time of such transaction, shares entitling such stockholders to a majority of all votes
(without consideration of the rights of any class of stock entitled to elect directors by a separate class vote) to which all stockholders of the corporation issuing
cash or securities in the consolidation, merger or share exchange would be entitled for the purpose of electing directors or where the Current Directors
immediately after the effective time of the consolidation, merger or share exchange would not constitute a majority of the Board of Directors of the corporation
issuing cash or securities in the consolidation, merger or share exchange.
(e)

Good Reason.

(1)
At any time during the term of this Agreement, subject to the conditions set forth in Section 10(e)(2) below, the Executive may
terminate this Agreement and the Executive’s employment with the Company for “Good Reason.” For purposes of this Agreement, “Good Reason” shall
mean the occurrence of any of the following events: (A) the assignment, without the Executive’s consent, to the Executive of duties that are significantly
different from, and that result in a substantial diminution of, the duties that he assumed on the Effective Date; (B) the assignment, without the Executive’s
consent, to the Executive of a title that is different from and subordinate to the title Chief Financial Officer; (C) any termination of the Executive’s
employment by the Company within 12 months after a Change of Control, other than a termination for Cause, death or Disability; or (D) material breach
by the Company of this Agreement.
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(2)
The Executive shall not be entitled to terminate this Agreement for Good Reason unless and until he shall have delivered written notice
to the Company of his intention to terminate this Agreement and his employment with the Company for Good Reason, which notice specifies in
reasonable detail the circumstances claimed to provide the basis for such termination for Good Reason, and the Company shall not have eliminated the
circumstances constituting Good Reason within 30 days of its receipt from the Executive of such written notice.
(3)
In the event that the Executive terminates this Agreement and his employment with the Company for Good Reason, the Company
shall pay or provide to the Executive (or, following his death, to the Executive’s heirs, administrators or executors): (A) any earned but unpaid Base
Salary, unpaid pro rata annual bonus and unused vacation days accrued through the Executive’s last day of employment with the Company; (B)
continued coverage, at the Company’s expense, under all Benefits Plans in which the Executive was a participant immediately prior to his last date of
employment with the Company, or, in the event that any such Benefit Plans do not permit coverage of the Executive following his last date of
employment with the Company, under benefit plans that provide no less coverage than such Benefit Plans, for a period of two years following the
termination of employment; (C) reimbursement of any and all reasonable expenses paid or incurred by the Executive in connection with and related to
the performance of his duties and responsibilities for the Company during the period ending on the termination date; and (D) the Base Salary, as in
effect immediately prior to the Executive’s termination hereunder, and any bonuses earned, during the remainder of the Employment Period. All
payments due hereunder shall be payable according to the Company’s standard payroll procedures. The Company shall deduct, from all payments
made hereunder, all applicable taxes, including income tax, FICA and FUTA, and other appropriate deductions.
(f)

Without “Good Reason” by Executive or Without “Cause” by the Company .

(1)
By the Executive. At any time during the term of this Agreement, the Executive shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement and the
Executive’s employment with the Company without Good Reason by providing prior written notice of at least 30 days to the Company. Upon termination
by the Executive of this Agreement and the Executive’s employment with the Company without Good Reason, the Company shall have no further
obligations or liability to the Executive or his heirs, administrators or executors with respect to compensation and benefits thereafter, except for the
obligation to pay the Executive any earned but unpaid Base Salary, unused vacation days accrued through the Executive’s last day of employment with
the Company and reimbursement of any and all reasonable expenses paid or incurred by the Executive in connection with and related to the
performance of his duties and responsibilities for the Company during the period ending on the termination date. The Company shall deduct, from all
payments made hereunder, all applicable taxes, including income tax, FICA and FUTA, and other appropriate deductions.
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(2)
By the Company . At any time during the term of this Agreement, the Company shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement and the
Executive’s employment with the Company without Cause by providing prior written notice of at least 30 days to the Executive. Upon termination by the
Company of this Agreement and the Executive’s employment with the Company without Cause, the Company shall pay or provide to the Executive (or,
following his death, to the Executive’s heirs, administrators or executors): (A) any earned but unpaid Base Salary, unpaid pro rata annual bonus and
unused vacation days accrued through the Executive’s last day of employment with the Company; (B) continued coverage, at the Company’s expense,
under all Benefits Plans in which the Executive was a participant immediately prior to his last date of employment with the Company, or, in the event that
any such Benefit Plans do not permit coverage of the Executive following his last date of employment with the Company, under benefit plans that
provide no less coverage than such Benefit Plans, for a period of two years following the termination of employment; (C) reimbursement of any and all
reasonable expenses paid or incurred by the Executive in connection with and related to the performance of his duties and responsibilities for the
Company during the period ending on the termination date; and (D) the Base Salary, as in effect immediately prior to the Executive’s termination
hereunder, and any bonuses earned, for a three year period. All payments due hereunder shall be payable according to the Company’s standard payroll
procedures. The Company shall deduct, from all payments made hereunder, all applicable taxes, including income tax, FICA and FUTA, and other
appropriate deductions. (E) if the Change of Control occurs prior to the fourth anniversary of the Effective Date of this Agreement, the Employee shall be
relieved of his obligations pursuant to Sections 11 and 12 insofar as those sections relate to continuing obligations of the Employee following the
termination of his employment.
11.

Confidential Information.

(a)
Disclosure of Confidential Information. The Executive recognizes, acknowledges and agrees that he has had and will continue to have access
to secret and confidential information regarding the Company, its subsidiaries and their respective businesses (“Confidential Information”), including but not
limited to, its products, formulae, patents, sources of supply, customer dealings, data, and business plans, provided such information is not in or does not
hereafter become part of the public domain, or become known to others through no fault of the Executive. The Executive acknowledges that such information is
of great value to the Company, is the sole property of the Company, and has been and will be acquired by him in confidence. In consideration of the obligations
undertaken by the Company herein, the Executive will not, at any time, during or after his employment hereunder, reveal, divulge or make known to any person,
any information acquired by the Executive during the course of his employment, which is treated as confidential by the Company, and not otherwise in the public
domain. The provisions of this Section 11 shall survive the termination of the Executive’s employment hereunder other than as specified in Section 10(f)(2)(E).
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(b)
The Executive affirms that he does not possess and will not rely upon the protected trade secrets or confidential or proprietary information of
any prior employer(s) in providing services to the Company.
(c)
In the event that the Executive’s employment with the Company terminates for any reason, the Executive shall deliver forthwith to the Company
any and all originals and copies, including those in electronic or digital formats, of Confidential Information.
12.

Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation .

(a)
The Executive agrees and acknowledges that the Confidential Information that the Executive has already received and will receive is valuable
to the Company and that its protection and maintenance constitutes a legitimate business interest of the Company, to be protected by the non-competition
restrictions set forth herein. The Executive agrees and acknowledges that the non-competition restrictions set forth herein are reasonable and necessary and do
not impose undue hardship or burdens on the Executive. The Executive also acknowledges that the products and services developed or provided by the
Company, its affiliates and/or its clients or customers are or are intended to be sold, provided, licensed and/or distributed to customers and clients in and
throughout the United States (the “Territory”) (to the extent the Company comes to operate, either directly or through the engagement of a distributor or joint or
co-venturer, or sell a significant amount of its products and services to customers located, in areas other than the United States during the term of the
Employment Period, the definition of Territory shall be automatically expanded to cover such other areas), and that the Territory, scope of prohibited competition,
and time duration set forth in the non-competition restrictions set forth below are reasonable and necessary to maintain the value of the Confidential Information
of, and to protect the goodwill and other legitimate business interests of, the Company, its affiliates and/or its clients or customers.
(b)
The Executive hereby agrees and covenants that he shall not, without the prior written consent of the Company, directly or indirectly, in any
capacity whatsoever, including, without limitation, as an employee, employer, consultant, principal, partner, shareholder, officer, director or any other individual
or representative capacity (other than a holder of less than two percent (2%) of the outstanding voting shares of any publicly held company), or whether on the
Executive's own behalf or on behalf of any other person or entity or otherwise howsoever, during the Employment Period, to the extent described below, within
the Territory:
(1)
Engage, own, manage, operate, control, be employed by, consult for, participate in, or be connected in any manner with the
ownership, management, operation or control of any business in competition with the primary business of the Company with the following exceptions:
(2) Recruit, solicit or hire, or attempt to recruit, solicit or hire, any employee, of the Company to leave the employment thereof, whether or not any
such employee is party to an employment agreement;
(3)
Attempt in any manner to solicit or accept from any customer of the Company, with whom the Company had significant contact during
Executive’s employment by the Company (whether under this Agreement or otherwise), business of the kind or competitive with the business done by
the Company with such customer or to persuade or attempt to persuade any such customer to cease to do business or to reduce the amount of
business which such customer has customarily done or might do with the Company, or if any such customer elects to move its business to a person
other than the Company, provide any services (of the kind or competitive with the Business of the Company) for such customer, or have any discussions
regarding any such service with such customer, on behalf of such other person; or
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(4)
Interfere with any relationship, contractual or otherwise, between the Company and any other party, including, without limitation, any
supplier, distributor, co-venturer or joint venturer of the Company to discontinue or reduce its business with the Company or otherwise interfere in any
way with the Business of the Company.
With respect to the activities described in Paragraphs (2), (3) and (4) above, the restrictions of this Section 12(b) shall continue beyond the Employment Period
until one year following the termination of this Agreement or of the Executive’s employment with the Company, whichever occurs later. Furthermore, if the
Company terminates Executive’s employment for Cause or if Executive terminates his employment without Good Reason, then the restrictions of this Section
12(b) shall continue with respect to the activities described in Paragraph (1), above, beyond the Employment Period until one year following the termination of
this Agreement or of the Executive’s employment with the Company, whichever occurs later.
13.

Miscellaneous.

(a)
The Executive acknowledges that the services to be rendered by him under the provisions of this Agreement are of a special, unique and
extraordinary character and that it would be difficult or impossible to replace such services. The parties understand and intend that each restriction agreed to by
the Company or the Executive hereinabove shall be construed as separable and divisible from every other restriction, that the unenforceability of any restriction
shall not limit the enforceability, in whole or in part, of any other restriction, and that one or more or all of such restrictions may be enforced in whole or in part
as the circumstances warrant. In the event that any restriction in this Agreement is more restrictive than permitted by law in the jurisdiction in which the
Company seeks enforcement thereof, such restriction shall be limited to the extent permitted by law. The remedy of injunctive relief herein set forth shall be in
addition to, and not in lieu of, any other rights or remedies that the Company may have at law or in equity.
(b)
Neither the Executive nor the Company may assign or delegate any of their rights or duties under this Agreement without the express written
consent of the other; provided, however, that the Company shall have the right to delegate its obligation of payment of all sums due to the Executive hereunder,
provided that such delegation shall not relieve the Company of any of its obligations hereunder and the successor shall deem this Agreement to be binding in its
entirety.
(c)
This Agreement constitutes and embodies the full and complete understanding and agreement of the parties with respect to the Executive’s
employment by the Company, supersedes all prior understandings and agreements, whether oral or written, between the Executive and the Company, and shall
not be amended, modified or changed except by an instrument in writing executed by the party to be charged. The invalidity or partial invalidity of one or more
provisions of this Agreement shall not invalidate any other provision of this Agreement. No waiver by either party of any provision or condition to be performed
shall be deemed a waiver of similar or dissimilar provisions or conditions at the same time or any prior or subsequent time.

8

(d)
This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, be binding upon and enforceable against, the parties hereto and their respective successors,
heirs, beneficiaries and permitted assigns.
(e)
The headings contained in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation
of this Agreement.
(f)
All notices, requests, demands and other communications required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed
to have been duly given when personally delivered, sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or by reputable national
overnight delivery service (e.g. Federal Express) for overnight delivery to the party at the address set forth in the preamble to this Agreement, or to such other
address as either party may hereafter give the other party notice of in accordance with the provisions hereof. Notices shall be deemed given on the sooner of
the date actually received or the third business day after deposited in the mail or one business day after deposited with an overnight delivery service for
overnight delivery.
(g)
This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Wyoming without reference to
principles of conflicts of laws and each of the parties hereto irrevocably consents to the jurisdiction and venue of the federal and state courts located in the
County and State of Wyoming.
(h)
This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which
together shall constitute one of the same instrument. The parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date set forth above.
(i)
The Executive represents and warrants to the Company, that he has the full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform
his obligations hereunder and that the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the performance of his obligations hereunder will not conflict with any
agreement to which Executive is a party.
(j)

In the event of a dispute between the Executive and the Company, the Company will be responsible for the payment of all attorneys’ fees.

(k)
Indemnification, The Company shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, indemnify and hold harmless the Employee against any loss, liability,
claim, damage and expense, including the cost of defense, incurred in the course of the Employee's employment hereunder. The Company's liability hereunder
shall be reduced by the amount of insurance proceeds paid to or on behalf of the Employee with respect to an event giving rise to indemnification
hereunder. This indemnification shall survive the death or other termination of employment of the Employee and the termination of this Agreement. Any legal
fees incurred by the Employee in the enforcement of this or any other provision of this Agreement shall be promptly reimbursed by the Company as the same
are incurred.
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(l)

The agreement will be read in its entirety.

[Signature page follows immediately]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Executive and the Company have caused this Executive Employment Agreement to be executed as of the date first above
written.

BRADLEY SPARKS
/s/ Bradley Sparks

LAREDO OIL, INC.

By: /s/ Mark See
Name: Mark See
Title: CEO
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EXHIBIT 14.1

CODE OF ETHICS AND BUSINESS CONDUCT
The Board maintains policies and procedures (which we refer to as our Code) that represent both the code of ethics for the principal executive officer, principal
financial officer and principal accounting officer under SEC rules and the code of business conduct and ethics for directors, officers and employees. The Code
applies to all directors, officers and employees.
The code is posted on this internet site and is available free of charge by writing to:
Laredo Oil, Inc.
2203
Townes
Lane

Austin, TX 78703-2329
Or by calling us at 512-961-3801.
The Board Affairs Committee will review any issues with the Code involving an executive officer or director and will report its findings to the Board. The Board
does not envision that any waivers of the Code will be granted, but should a waiver occur for an executive officer or director, it will also be promptly disclosed on
the site.
The Code consists of the Ethics Policy, the Conflicts of Interest Policy, the Corporate Assets Policy, the Directorships Policy and the section below called the,
“Procedures and Open Door Communications.”

The Code follows:
Ethics Policy
The policy of Laredo Oil, Inc. is to comply with all governmental laws, rules and regulations applicable to its business.
Additionally, the Corporation expects compliance with its standard of integrity throughout the organization and will not tolerate employees who achieve results at
the cost of violation of law or who deal unscrupulously. The Corporation’s directors and officers support, and expect the Corporation’s employees to support, any
employee who passes up an opportunity or advantage that would sacrifice ethical standards.
It is the Corporation’s policy that all transactions will be accurately reflected in its books and records. Employees are expected to record all transactions
accurately in the Corporation’s books and records, and to be honest and forthcoming with the Corporation’s internal and independent auditors.
The Corporation expects candor from employees at all levels and adherence to its policies and internal controls.
It is the Corporation’s policy to make full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable disclosure in reports and documents that the Corporation files with the
United States Securities and Exchange Commission and in other public communications. All employees are responsible for reporting material information
known to them to higher management so that the information will be available to senior executives responsible for making disclosure decisions.
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Conflict of Interest Policy
It is the policy of Laredo Oil, Inc. that directors, officers and employees are expected to avoid any actual or apparent conflict between their own personal
interests and the interests of the Corporation. Directors, officers and employees are expected to refrain from taking for themselves opportunities discovered
through their use of corporate assets or through their positions with the Corporation. Directors, officers and employees are expected to avoid securities
transactions based on material, nonpublic information learned through their positions with the Corporation. Directors, officers and employees are expected to
refrain from competing with the Corporation.

Corporate Assets Policy
It is the policy of Laredo Oil, Inc. that directors, officers and employees are expected to protect the assets of the Corporation and use them efficiently to advance
the interests of the Corporation. Those assets include tangible assets and intangible assets, such as confidential information of the Corporation. No director,
officer or employee should use or disclose at any time during or subsequent to employment or other service to the Corporation, without proper authority or
mandate, confidential information obtained from any source in the Corporation’s business.

Directorships Policy
It is the policy of Laredo Oil, Inc. to restrict the holdings by officers and employees of directorships in nonaffiliated, for-profit organizations and to prohibit the
acceptance by any officer or employee of such directorship that would involve a conflict of interest with, or interfere with, the discharge of the officer’s or
employee’s duties to the Corporation. Any officer or employee may hold directorships in nonaffiliated, nonprofit organizations, unless such directorships would
involve a conflict of interest with, or interfere with, the discharge of the officer’s or employee’s duties to the Corporation, or obligate the Corporation to provide
support to the nonaffiliated, nonprofit organizations. Officers and employees may serve as directors of affiliated companies and such service may be part of their
normal work assignments.
All directorships in public companies held by directors of the Corporation are subject to review and approval by the Board of Directors of the Corporation. In all
other cases, directorships in nonaffiliated, for-profit organizations are subject to review and approval by the management of the Corporation, as directed by the
Chairman.

Procedures and Open Door Communication
Laredo Oil, Inc. encourages employees to ask questions, voice concerns and make appropriate suggestions regarding the business practices of the Corporation.
Employees are expected to report promptly to management suspected violations of law, the Corporation’s policies and the Corporation’s internal controls, so that
management can take appropriate corrective action. The Corporation promptly investigates reports of suspected violations of law, policies, and internal control
procedures.
Management is ultimately responsible for the investigation of and appropriate response to reports of suspected violations of law, policies and internal control
procedures. Internal Audit has primary responsibility for investigating violations of the Corporation’s internal controls, with the assistance from others, depending
on the subject matter of the inquiry. The persons who investigate suspected violations are expected to exercise independent and objective judgment.
Failure to behave honestly and failure to comply with law, the Corporation’s policies, and the Corporation’s internal controls may result in disciplinary action, up
to and including separation.
No one in the Corporation has the authority to make exceptions or grant waivers to the Corporation’s foundation policies. It is recognized that there will be
questions about the application of the policies to specific activities and situations. In cases of doubt, directors, officers and employees are expected to seek
clarification and guidance. In those instances where the Corporation, after review, approves an activity or situation, the Corporation is not granting an exception
or waiver but is determining that there is no policy violation. If the Corporation determines that there is or would be a policy violation, appropriate action is taken.

2

Exhibit 31.1
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14

I, Mark See, Chief Executive Officer of Laredo Oil, Inc., certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May 31, 2010 of Laredo Oil, Inc., the registrant;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
annual report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other than financial information included in this annual report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and we have:

5.

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including any of its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b.

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c.

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d.

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee (if any) of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b.

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
controls over financial reporting.

Dated: September 14, 2010

By: /s/ Mark See
Mark See
Chief Executive Officer and sole Director

Exhibit 31.2
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14

I, Bradley E. Sparks, Chief Financial Officer of Laredo Oil, Inc., certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May 31, 2010 of Laredo Oil, Inc., the registrant;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
annual report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other than financial information included in this annual report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and we have:

5.

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including any of its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b.

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c.

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d.

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee (if any) of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b.

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
controls over financial reporting.

Dated: September 14, 2010

By: /s/ Bradley E. Sparks
Bradley E. Sparks
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Laredo Oil, Inc. (the “Company”) for the year ended May 31, 2010 as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof, I, Mark See, Chief Executive Officer and sole Director, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge and belief:
1.

The Annual Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2.

The information contained in this Annual Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the Company.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

Dated: September 14, 2010

By: /s/ Mark See
Mark See
Chief Executive Officer and sole Director

Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Laredo Oil, Inc. (the “Company”) for the year ended May 31, 2010, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Bradley E. Sparks, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge and belief:
1.

The Annual Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2.

The information contained in this Annual Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the Company.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

Dated: September 14, 2010

By: /s/ Bradley E. Sparks
Bradley E. Sparks
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

